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MR REDMER It's 10:00 o'clock [sic]. M

name is Al Redner. | amthe conm ssioner for
the State of Maryland. [I'msorry. It's 9:00
o'clock. [1've already screwed up the record.

Wth ne at the table, to ny right is Vinnie
O Grady, who is the Associ ate Conmm ssioner of
Exam nation & Auditing.

And to ny left is Van Dorsey, who is the
princi pal counsel fromthe Ofice O The Attorney
General .

The adm nistration has before it the
application of Evergreen Health, Inc., a nonprofit
HMO to convert to a for profit status and be
acquired by certain investors.

The parties wshing to acquire Evergreen are
JARS, J-A-R S, Health Investnents, LLC, Anne Arundel
Health System Inc. and LBH Evergreen Hol di ngs, LLC

The application was received by the
Adm nistration on May 1st, 2017. The Adm nistration
publ i shed notice of the application and of this
hearing, which is required by Section 6.5-203 of the

State Governnent Article of the Annotated Code of
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1  Maryl and.

2 |, as conm ssioner, may not approve the

3 conversion and acquisition unless | determ ne that
4 it isin the public interests.

5 In that regard, the criteria on which the

6 reviewis based is spelled out in the | aw

7 W have asked Evergreen to provide testinony
8 today to address the criteria and to explain why
9 this proposed transaction is indeed in the public
10 interest.

11 Fol | ow ng the testinony, on behalf of

12  Evergreen, others present who have signed up to
13 testify may do so. Time limts nmay be inposed for

14 the other interested parties, if necessary. M

15 staff and I, fromtinme to tine, nmay pose questions.
16 For those individuals who are unable to attend
17 in person, we have established a conference cal

18 line. It sounds like there's a few folks on the

19 line. | would ask that if you're not speaking, to

20 mute your phone, but please do not place it on hold.
21 As we get started, if you are on the phone,

22 would you mnd identifying who you are.
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MR MOORE: Hi. Aaron from Orange El enent
Is here. We're representing Evergreen Health,
as an agency for marketing.
MS. BUSKIRK: Barb Van Buskirk, vice
presi dent of marketing.
MR. REDMER |s anybody el se on the phone?
Ckay. Wth that, we wll nove al ong.
At this time, | would like to ask Evergreen to
present its first wtness, who | believe is
Dr. Peter Beilenson, the president and CEO of the
conpany.
Peter, wel come, and thanks for participating.
MR. BEI LENSON. Thanks for having ne,
M. Redner, M. Dorsey, M. O Gady. Thank you
for the opportunity to present this.
|'m pleased to bring this transaction to you
and the comunity to denonstrate that the proposed
conversion and acquisition of Evergreen is in the
interest of its policyholders and the insurance
mar ket and citizens of this state.
Ironically, having been initiated as a part of

the co-op programof the Affordable Care Act, if it
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weren't for two arcane aspects of the ACA, being
outrageous paynents required of us fromthe fatally
flawed risk adjustnment process and the federal

gover nment not payi ng Evergreen what we were owed
under the risk quota program we would not be here
t oday.

In fact, prior to the inposition of the risk
adj ust ment paynent, we were actually profiters, if
you renenber.

In [ate June of 2016, after we were assessed a
$24, 000, 000 risk adjustnment paynent, over 28 percent
of our entire revenue for the year, all of which we
had to pay to our chief conpetitor in the Mryl and
mar ket pl ace, we found ourselves in a financially
untenabl e situation. Sinply put, w thout
significant capital to refill our conpleted
reserves, we could not continue to operate.

Wth that said, July of 2016, we began pursuing
potential investors, seeking a transaction that
woul d save Evergreen and be good for our custoners
in the community, in part, by continuing to provide

for a nutual conpetitor in the marketplace.
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After talking with nore than 75 potenti al
I nvestors fromall over the country, we eventually
sel ected three local investors with great
reputations in the state, JARS, Anne Arundel Health
System and LifeBridge Heal th.

After negotiations with both state and federal
regul ators, as you are very cogni zant of, we energed
fromthe co-op programon January 19th, 2017. At
that time, | can't remenber exactly.

And with our three partners, filed an
application as the conm ssioner nentioned, to
convert to a for profit entity on May 1st, 2017.

Since that tinme, we have responded to witten
questions fromthe MA and submtted witten
testinony for this hearing. Al of this taken
toget her shows that this transaction is in the
public interest.

| n support of this conclusion, you will hear
from Evergreen's val uation and comunity i npact
experts. These three purchasers will speak |ater
this norning as well.

| would like to thank the purchasers,
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1 especially Mark Quente for working so hard to save
2 Evergreen. Mark and JARS becane invol ved | ast

3 COctober and has stood by in the roller coaster ride
4 that has been this experience for the past several
5 nmonths, and we are very grateful to them

6 |'d like to thank our regulatory counsel, Ren
7  Tundermann, for her trenmendous efforts in speeding
8 this process along in the mdst of chaos at tines.
9 |'d Iike to thank our brokers, many of whom
10  have worked hard to continue to sell our plans even
11 in the face of an uncertain future,

12 But nost of all, | would like to thank all of
13 Evergreen's enployees. This has been an incredibly
14  stressful year, not know ng whether we woul d survive
15 and often it felt like, wth the caseload, and

16  endl ess |inbo.

17 Qur enpl oyees have worked very hard to keep the
18 conpany alive and noving forward, and | amvery

19 proud of the entire team
20 Finally, we are very excited about the
21 opportunities ahead for Evergreen Health. Having

22 two health systens and a cadre of experienced
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I nsur

opens

t han

| ook

pur ch

ance and health care executives on our team
the door to nmany new possibilities.

W | ook forward to Evergreen energi ng stronger
ever before,

| 1ook forward to answering your questions and
forward to having our experts and the

asers conme forward after ne.

MR. REDMER  Any questions?

MR DORSEY: Two questions, | think. As
for as you know, it's the investors' intentions
to retaining you as CEO i medi ately foll ow ng
the acquisition, correct?

MR, BEI LENSON:  Yes.

MR. DORSEY: And there are no retention
bonuses or anything of that nature?

MR BEILENSON. That is correct.

MR REDMER Ren, did you want to say
anything, or are you just here to control hin?

MS. TUNDERMANN: |'mwangling the truth.
' mfine.

MR. REDMER  Thank you, Van.

MR. DORSEY: |Is the next w tness

DTl
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Ms. Novak?

MS. TUNDERMANN:  No. The next w tness
wll be M. Swartley from Moss- Adans - -

MR DORSEY: Sure. Very good.

MS. TUNDERMANN: -- our valuation expert.

MR SWARTLEY: \Were would you |Iike ne?

M5. TUNDERMANN: Here. You guys can

sw tch.

Calvin wll summarize his valuation anal ysis,

I ncl udi ng his updated analysis, and then he will be
glad to answer any questions.
MR. REDMER: |If you don't mind, give your
nanme and conpany for the record.
MR. SWARTLEY: Yes. Absolutely. M nane

Is Calvin Swartley, and |'mw th Mss-Adans,

LLP.

W're a regional accounting form based on the
west coast. Wthin that firm-- it's a traditional
tax and accounting firm-- |I'mpart of the firms
val uation and services group. And | was asked to
performa val uati on of Evergreen.

W were retained | ast August, August of 2016,

DTI Court Reporting Sol utions - Washington, DC

1- 800- 292- 4789 www. deposi ti on. conf washi ngt on-dc. ht m


http://www.deposition.com

HEARI NG - 06/07/2017 Page 13

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22

and performed a valuation, with an effective date of
Sept enber 15th, which we provided to managenent in a
draft form

After that tine, we were asked to |ater update
our valuation and prepare it as of the date of
January 31st, 2017.

Wthin the valuation, we considered approaches
t hat woul d be applicable for Evergreen, including
I ncome approaches, nmarket approaches, asset-based
approaches. W al so consi dered sone of the
assunptions that are included in your state
statutes, which considered 100 percent of the
conpany being sold or the equity of it being sold,
the earnings capacity, the market, the net asset
val ue, whether or not a controlled premumwould be
applicable, and to make sure that we considered it
on an ongoi ng concern basis, which basically assumes
that it will continue into the future. Not that it
woul d be | i qui dat ed.

Wthin our analysis, we | ooked at various
nmeasures within each of the approaches. W

col l ected a great deal of data fromthe conpany,
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I ncl udi ng past financial performance, future
expectations. W |ooked at things that are going on
out in the market place, |ocal econony denographics,
things of that nature to assess how the conpany is
doing and how it wll performgoing forward.

Wthin our analysis, we prepared an incone
approach to |l ook at future cash flows of the
conpany, both on a going forward basis, but we also
did consider a w nd-down scenario, assum ng that
this conversion, if it did not happen, what would
t he conpany be |ike.

W | ooked out to the marketplace for conparable
transactions of other insurance conpanies that have
been bought and sold, as well as public conpanies
and how they trade in the marketpl ace.

And, finally, we |ooked at the conpany's
bal ance sheet and its assets versus its liabilities.

Based on our assessnent of all of those facts,
characteristics, at the tinme of January 31st, nost
of our approaches were indicating that there was
zero equity or surplus value. Although there were

assets on the books, the liabilities outscript those
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and made it essentially either a zero or a negative
nunber .

As we have noved forward fromthat point, we
have been asked to | ook at the performance of the
conpany and consi der what that performance woul d do
in light of the valuation and where we were com ng
out .

And since that tinme, it's nmy understanding,
fromthe information |I've been provided, one, there
were sone adjustnments to the year-end financials,
whi ch actually nmade it | ook worse than the
i nformation we have been provided, and, two, that it
continues to operate with | osses and has had to take
on nore surplus notes to just fund its operations.

So, at this point in tinme, unless there is
there sonething that we weren't provided, it would
be difficult for us to say that the val ue has
I ncreased fromthe values that we have provided in
January.

MR. REDMER  Two questions: This is
probably pretty basic. But could you describe

what a controlled premumis?
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1 MR. SWARTLEY: Ch, sure. That's a very
2 good question. And within our report, one of
3 the things that we show is sone of the data
4 t hat m ght support that.

5 So, oftentines, when a conpany is |looking to

6 acquire another conpany, especially when you start
7 to look at public conpanies, you'll see that at the
8 point that there's an announcenent, the buyers are
9 wlling to pay a price higher than the price that
10 the shares are trading in the open market at that

11 point in tine.

12 MR. REDMER  Right.

13 MR, SWARTLEY: And | think it's inportant
14 to note that we see that often, that the buyer
15 feels that they may have sone synergies or cost
16 efficiencies or other things that make them

17 think that we can pay a prem um above what the
18 mar ket says, you know, what a tradeabl e anpunt
19 woul d be.

20 So, we did consider that wthin our analysis.
21 MR REDMER Got it. Let's take Evergreen
22 out of it for a second, because | think we'll
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probably get into these questions when we speak

to the investors. But you do this in other

I ndustries for other conpanies. So, let's take

Evergreen out of it.

One of the general questions is going to be if
a conpany does not have a val ue, then why is another
conpany going to be interested in purchasing that
for whatever anmount of noney.

So, could you wal k through just the laundry
|ist of sone of the reasons that one conpany woul d
pay noney to buy another conpany that technically
may not have any val ue.

A Sure. And that's a very good question.
Qbvi ously, having not talked to the investors, |
don't know their notivations.

MR REDMER Right. W'IIl ask them
MR. SWARTLEY: But in general -- yeah.

But in general, you raise a good question,

because there are notivations for conpanies to

buy ot her conpani es, depending on situations

and facts and circunstances. Sonetinmes that

can be that the buyer feels that they can do a

DTI Court Reporting Sol utions - Washington, DC

1- 800- 292- 4789 www. deposi ti on. conf washi ngt on-dc. ht m


http://www.deposition.com

HEARI NG - 06/07/2017 Page 18

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22

better job running the conpany. So, they can

come in, and |I'lIl say fix sonme of the things

t hat maybe weren't working correctly, or they

may see that there's an opportunity to enhance

their own business line. So, vertical
integration is a termwe often use.

So, taking that conmpany, putting it with sone
of the services that they already provide and trying
to provide a nore conpl ete package and control both
revenue and costs of everything that's going on.
Sonetinmes there are predatory reasons for doing
that, taking a conpetitor out of the marketpl ace,
and, also, at times, there are situations where the
ot her conpany that is struggling, and soneone is
wlling to cone in, buy it and try to liquidate it
and see if they can walk away with anything at the
end of the day.

MR. REDMER  Right.
MR SWARTLEY: So, those would be many of

t he reasons that sonmeone may be willing to pay

for a conpany, any type of conpany.

MR REDMER Right. Thank you. Van?
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1 MR DORSEY: Is it an accurate summary of
2 your testinony fromyour report, that in this
3 case, because of the liabilities exceed the
4 assets, that in your view, there are no public
5 assets in this case?
6 MR. SWARTLEY: Correct. Yes.
7 MR. REDMER: Geat. Thank you.
8 MR SWARTLEY: Thank you.
9 MS. TUNDERMANN:  Next, we will hear from
10 Donna Novac. She did the community inpact
11 anal ysis for Evergreen.
12 M5. NOVAK: Good norning. | am Donna
13 Novac with NovaRest Consulting. NovaRest
14 Consulting is an actuarial consulting firm
15 that works with state and federal insurance
16 underwiters.
17 W were asked to ook at the comunity inpact
18 of this proposed acquisition. And our final report
19 was published on or about April 27th, and it's
20 available. And, so, what | amgoing to be
21 summarizing is actually the April 27th report from
22 this year.
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One of the things that we found from our
analysis is that this acquisition wuld be
beneficial to the community served by Evergreen,
that it would not be detrinmental to the availability
or access to health services.

As we've already heard, Evergreen has a very
hazardous financial situation right now, and this
acqui sition would provide the funds to bring the
ri sk-based capital or solvency up to an acceptable
| evel .

Evergreen, right now, offers products in the
smal | group and | arge group markets. Because of its
financial condition, it's been suppressed from
offering products in the individual market in 2017.
But once its financial condition is satisfactory,
and that suppression is raised, it intends to enter
into the individual market also.

There are approximately five carriers in the
i ndi vi dual market right now. Sonme of those
affiliated, and approximately 11 in the snall group
mar ket. Some of those are affiliated. And what

Evergreen brings is further conpetition in those
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mar ket s.

It's been showi ng over and over again that the
nore conpetitors in the health insurance market, the
premuns tend to be lower. Also, Evergreen provides
addi tional choice in those markets as far as
products.

| f Evergreen cannot continue, if this
acquisition is not in place, its nenbers will have
to find another carrier, Evergreen being their
carrier of choice. They will have to find another
carrier. They wll possibly have to pay higher
premuns for simlar benefits when they change
carriers, and they may have to change provider
net wor ks and woul dn't have the choice of providers.

The acquirers have said that at the beginning,
right after the acquisition, they do not intend to
change the products or the operations of Evergreen,
al though they are intending to | ook at best
practices in the marketplace, and potentially make
sone changes goi ng forward.

Premunms will probably increase, because

Evergreen, right now, is not subject to prem umtax,

DTI Court Reporting Sol utions - Washington, DC

1- 800- 292- 4789 www. deposi ti on. conf washi ngt on-dc. ht m

http: // w. yes| aw. net/ hel p


http://www.deposition.com

HEARI NG - 06/07/2017 Page 22

1 and they will be subject to premumtax once it's

2 for profit. And, also, premuns will have to cover
3 any return on investnent with the prior exanple.

4 But in support of having affordable health

5 care, being acquirers are commtted to bringing the
6 risk-based capital up to 71 percent at the tine of
7 acquisition, and they are going to nmake efforts to
8 bring the risk-based capital up to 200 percent by

9 the end of 2018.

10 As far as equitability to the current nenbers,
11  ACA does not allow underwiting and does not all ow
12 pricing on norbidity. The acquirers are not

13 intending to change the underwiting standards in
14 the large group market, but, again, if the

15 acquisition does not take place, the nenbers wll
16 have to find insurance with another carrier and

17 potentially have a higher price and potentially have

18 to change networks. Are there any questions?

19 MR REDMER  W're good. Thank you very
20 much.

21 MS. TUNDERMANN: One of the other required
22 elements in a conversion application is an
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1 anal ysis of the anti-trust issues.

2 Evergreen submtted a | egal opinion in that

3 regard, and the principal counsel asked for some

4 additional analysis, which was provided.

5 And with that, we felt we didn't need the

6 |awer to appear and speak to his opinion, that the
7 opinions speaks for itself.

8 MR. DORSEY: And both docunents are in

9 front of you.

10 MS. TUNDERMANN:  Yes. So, now, we would
11 | i ke to introduce you to our investors, and | et
12 you hear fromthemand talk with them about

13 their plans for Evergreen. W've arranged to
14 have one representative of each of the

15 I nvestors, so that you may ask questions of

16 each of them But we'll begin with the opening
17 st at enent .

18 MR. JOSHI : Thank you. Good norning,

19 everyone. My nane is Maulik Joshi, and I'mthe
20 executive vice president and chief operating
21 officer for the Anne Arundel Health System

22 Thank you, M. Conm ssioner, M. Associate
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Conmi ssioner, M. Dorsey. W appreciate the

opportunity.

On behalf of the investors, JARS Health
| nvestnents, LLC, LifeBridge Health and Anne Arundel
Heal th System we appreciate the opportunity to
appear before you today in support of Evergreen
Heal th application to convert to a nonprofit to a
for profit conpany and our application to acquire
Evergreen Heal t h.

As | think, as you've heard earlier, we know
Evergreen's path to this day has been | ong and
chal I engi ng, but we want to share with you how
excited we are for the conm ssioner and the
community, in terms of the path for should these
appl i cations be approved.

So, first, speaking for Anne Arundel Health
System it has been a core tenet of our strategic
plan to create a provider sponsored health plan. W
devel oped a strategic plan in 2009 called Vision
20/ 20, and again, the core strategic and issue is
devel opi ng a provider sponsored health plan.

Qur investnment in Evergreen is a strategic
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Investment. We want to further population health
and further integrate the delivery of care and the
fi nanci ng.

Qur Anne Arundel Health Systemmssion is to
enhance the health of the people we serve, and
provi ding af fordable health care coverage to
Maryland citizens is essential to health. W know
that health insurance is related to better access.
Better access relates to better care, and better
care relates to better health. That's the triple A
and we are aligned with Evergreen on the Triple A --
best care, best service, |owest costs possible.

My col |l eagues and | have had many conversations
W th the | eadership of LifeBridge and wth JARS, and
we certainly know that we share a conmon vision in
terms of where we're going. Wile the creation of a
provi der sponsored health plan is not part of
LifeBridge's core strategic plan, they, |like us,
view the acquisition of Evergreen as an exceptional
opportunity to inprove the health of the citizens of
Mar yl and.

| know, also, that LifeBridge Health has
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devel oped a geographically di ssem nated network of
provi ders across the health care, continuing from
urgent care to nursing hones, hospice care, and
bringing these providers into the Evergreen provider
network will give its nmenbers nore choices and

easi er access to services.

Al so, Anne Arundel Health and LifeBridge Health
serve different areas of the state. So, our
interests -- and ours are conplinentary, not
entitlenent.

The notivation of JARSis a little different
than as its partners. JARS is an investnent vehicle
founded by a group of individuals and entities with
over 100 years of experience working within the
continuing care of the Maryland health care
I ndustry, including over 20 years of experience in
heal th i nsurance. JARS was created wth the dual
goals of a long-termfinancial forumof its
I nvest ment, coupled with providing capital to
preserve conpetition in the Maryl and market pl ace
while insuring that the citizens of Maryland receive

t he highest quality of care.
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This type of investment, we probably refer to
as socially responsible investing or socially
consci ous investing.

So, sinply put, this transaction is in the
public interest, because it preserves a | ower cost,
high quality conpetitor in the Maryland health
I nsurance narkets.

Evergreen has a great history, going from zero
to over 35,000 nenbers in three years of operations.
Evergreen was founded on the prom se of providing
affordabl e, high quality health insurance to nenbers
of our conmmunity. However, the conpany needs to be
financially viable.

Wth the conpetence and experience and
financial wear with all of JARS, LifeBridge Health,
and Anne Arundel Health System standing behind
Evergreen, Evergreen will achieve financial
stability and independence. The collective
knowl edge, experiences and resources that the
partners can bring will benefit the citizens of the
state of Maryland and only inprove health care

delivery to the policyhol ders.
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Shoul d the M A approve the conversion of
Evergreen, a not for profit to a for profit health
I nsurer, and the partners' subsequent controlling
I nvestnments, the partners will control of Evergreen
wth cash, there will be no debt to be financed by
Ever gr een.

To date, the partners have collectively nade
surplus | oans of $12, 000, 000.

Upon closing, the purchasers wll provide
addi ti onal investnments, which are sufficient for
Evergreen to satisfy the requirenents for its
certificate of authority, including the m nimm
surplus and RBC requirenents of Mryland Law.

The partners are fully aware for the potenti al
need for additional capital, and as Evergreen grows
in the future, and we are prepared to provide those
funds, as necessary.

The strong financial condition of the partners
w Il bring financial stability to Evergreen. This
transaction wll not substantially |essen
conpetition in the Maryland insurance market or tend

to create a nonopoly, because none of the purchasers
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own an interest in any carrier that conpetes with
Evergreen in any market in which it participates in.

Qur Form A application provides sone
i nformation regarding our plans for Evergreen's post
closing. W said that we have no plans to declare
any extraordinary dividend, to liquidate or sell any
of Evergreen's assets, or to nerge Evergreen with
any other entity.

W said we have no plans to nake any materi al
change in the business operations or corporate
structure of Evergreen.

Now, | et nme just provide a couple of colored
comentary around this. First of all, we know that
Evergreen's existing policyhol ders may be concerned
about this transaction and what it nmeans for themin
the imedi ate future.

W will inpose no md-termchanges to the
existing forms or rates of any current Evergreen
policyhol der. Evergreen currently wites in a snall
and | arge group markets, and we are aware that it
has filed forns and rates both for the small and

i ndi vi dual markets for 2018.
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W understand that these filings are under
review at the Insurance Adm nistration, and expect
that Evergreen will keep us apprized of devel opnents
prior to closing.

We know that Evergreen is advised by MIIiman
wth regard to its rate filings, and we do not
expect to change that relationship after closing.

Evergreen has an extensive provider network,
both directly contracted in Maryland and through a
nati onal |eased network. W expect to encourage and
support Evergreen's expansion of its directly
contracted Maryl and network post closing, including,
of course, the providers associated wth as the
I nvest ors.

We stated in the fornma that there are no
enpl oyment consul tation, advisory or nanagenent
contracts concerning Evergreen. W intend that
Evergreen be nmanaged by its |eadership team and its
board, and have no plans to outsource nmanagenent to
any of them

W have spoken with Dr. Beil enson, and Dan

Ragan and Dustin Plantholt, encouraging themto stay
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wi th the conmpany post cl osing.

After closing, the board will further assess
t he strengths and weaknesses of the |eadership team
and group at Evergreen.

The purchasers expect the new board will w sh
to have one or nore nanagenent | evel enployees as a
result of that assessnment. W also intend to engage
a consultant post closing to assist in assessing
potential changes in managenent and inprovenents to
operations. There is no enployee incentive or bonus
plan in place at Evergreen in 2017.

After closing, we expect a new board w ||
establish an incentive or bonus plan to align wth
t he enpl oyees' performance and with the conpany's
goal s and objectives, which is the Triple A

W appreciate the support and patience of the
adm ni stration, as well as Evergreen's
policyhol ders, brokers and enpl oyees, as we
undert ook detail ed due diligence with the conpany
and crafted a deal structure that best serves the
conpany's policyhol ders and the conpany.

We Dbelieve this transaction is in the public
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1 interests and shoul d be approved.

2 Now, |et nme introduce nmy two col |l eagues, Dave
3 and Susan.

4 M5. STITCHER. Good norning. M nane is
5 Susan Stitcher. | ama nenber of the JARS

6 health care investnent group. | have over 25
7 years of health care experience, predom nantly
8 in the Maryland market. | was enpl oyed by

9 consul ting conpanies, as well as a Maryl and

10 hospital. And | currently ama snmall business
11 owner with an organization that focuses on

12 medi cal record and the accuracy.

13 | appreciate the opportunity to be part of the
14 t eam

15 MR, KRAJEWSKI: Good norning. |'mvery
16 excited to be here. M nane is David

17 Krajewski. | have been with LifeBridge for 26
18 years now. Prior to that, | was with Arthur
19 Andersen, as a health care consultant on the
20 di vi si on side.
21 | have 31 years of experience in health care.
22 | served as the executive vice president at
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LifeBridge and the CFO and I'mthe president of
Li feBridge partners, which is the entity that we
I nvested in in Evergreen.

MR. REDMER  So, now, thank you. Your
openi ng statenent provided a |aundry |ist of
questions, of which none of them have anything
to do with whether this is in the public
I nterests.

So, | look forward to asking you those
questions at another time. Vinnie, any questions?
MR O GRADY: Sure. So, | appreciate your
I ntroductory comments on generically why you
all would be interested in this acquisition,
but let ne just ask the investors collectively.
The val uation anal ysis that Mss-Adans
prepared, concluded that the fair nmarket value is
zero, and, you know, the financial statenent show a
negative surplus.

So, could you just please explain, you know,
why you all believe that it is a good investnent for
you all to invest the 12,000,000 to date, plus the

substantial anmpbunts that remain and the additi onal
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anounts - -

MR KRAJEWBKI: There's two parts to that
answer. One is it's a strategic investnent for
at least two of us. W believe this is an
I nvest ment not only that has a financial return
in the future, but an investnent that will help
us to maintain the triple Ato support the
wai ver that Maryland has with Health Services
Cost Review Comm ssion. So, it's a very
strategi c asset for us.

In addition to it, we believe that an insurance
conpany that is well run, wth proper
capitalization, and the right partnership -- so, we
believe that we bring those partnerships to the
table -- will, in the future, have value. There's
ri sks associated with that, certainly, and there is
going to take sone period of tinme to get it to that
poi nt where it would be producing profit and surplus
and have future value. But we believe we can get it
t here.

MR. O GRADY: Do you have any further

speci fics about how you think you wll get
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t here?

W recogni ze that sone of the federal charges
that Dr. Beilenson nentioned, certainly contributed
to devel op these financial problens and the risk
adj ust ment programstill exists.

And, so, just anynore detailed thoughts on how
you believe you will achieve profitability?

MR KRAJEWBKI: Certainly, the scale is
one of them So, the partnerships we believe
wll allowus to build the nmenbership and run
the scale of the conpanies, such as the revenue
based at the top is larger. But, also, being
provi ders, we also believe that we can reduce
the revenue | oss ratios, nmanage the nedi cal
expenses in a way that they will be around 85
percent or so and get the overhead down to |ess
than 15 percent.

So, we're looking at it fromthat standpoint.
That loss ratio, do we think we can get it to
85 percent? Probably. Can we get the overhead down
to 15 percent? W believe we can. In order to do

that, we also have to build the scale of the
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conpany.

MR O GRADY: So, you nentioned the
commtnents to bring the surplus to certain
| evel s.

So, let's assume for a nonent that the MA
approves transactions. And let's assunme for a
nmoment, for the sake of discussion, the conpany
continues to incur |osses. Let's just nake that
assunpti on.

Have the investors determ ned any point at
whi ch you woul d wal k away fromthe nonies invested
to date as opposed to continuing to invest any
addi ti onal nonies?

MR JOSH : W have invested in Evergreen
to make it successful. So, we understand the
capi tal requirenents, and we understand that
there wll be further capital requirenents.

Again, we are not wal king away easily. W are

here to nmake this -- and as David has said, "this is
a strategic investnent." So, we're here to make it
worth it.

MR DORSEY: You' ve done your due
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ifol

for us in determ ning whether the surplus levels are

going to be at a sufficient |evel.

t hat,

t hat

di | i gence.
MR JOSH : W' ve done our due diligence.
MR. DORSEY: To follow up that question,
In the stock purchase agreenent, there is a
commtnment to get the RBC levels to 200 percent
RBC.
| just want to hear who you acknow edged tat,

could. And because that's a significant factor

MR KRAJEWBKI: R ght. W understand
t hat, and when we did our due diligence, that
was in our prior capital planning process, that
we need to get the conpany to 200 percent RBC.
So, all three of the investors have | ooked at
and at this point in tinme, we believe that
Is sonmething we are willing to formagain

MR. DORSEY: In the stock purchase
agreenent, it uses the phrase "commercially
reasonabl e efforts to get it to that |evel."
What does that nean to you?

MS. TUNDERMANN: I n sone ways, that's a

DTl
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1 | awyer question. So, if you ever --

2 MR REDMER Aren't they all?

3 MS. TUNDERMANN: | nean, feel free to

4 answer. But if you would like to refer to

5 George Nenphos, I"'msure he will be glad to

6 answer .

7 MR DORSEY: |In this case, |'Il just ask

8 I f you agree with counsel.

9 MR KRAJEWBKI: W will defer to CGeorge.
10 Understand that the investors are going to be
11 putting 25,000,000 to $30, 000,000 on the onset.
12 So, we're not taking that type of investnent
13 lightly.

14 So, we would not walk away very easily. That

15 is a large investnent, and we anticipate future

16 investnments beyond that.

17 But I'll let George answer the | awyer part of

18 the question.

19 MR. NEMPHOS: Thanks. Good norning. The

20 term"comercially reasonable efforts,” Van, as

21 you know, is a legal term

22 Specifically, froma |legal standpoint, it neans
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such efforts that a person or a business in the sane
position woul d reasonably take to ensure the outcone
necessary to be sought.

In this case, what we viewthat as is that as
It noves forward, Evergreen is clearly its own
entity, with the guidance, help and support of these
three individual partners. |It's the intention, as
you' ve heard this norning already, that it becone a
financially viable and capabl e conpany in delivering
the product and assisting in the health care that is
in the state of Mryl and.

To do that, there is certain regulatory
requirements with regard to RBC level. And as
I nvestors, they are willing to take the steps that
anot her person or entity would be inin a simlar
situation would be in and reasonably woul d take, and
we're to ensure that.

Does that nean that these three partners, in
the end, will continue to work and try to
financially support and finance the needs? Yes.

But as a living, breathing entity, in and of itself,

they will have to exam ne the situation each tine
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for what's the best nethod, the best way, and the
best process in which to get to 200 percent.

And as in any business, those conmercially
reasonabl e efforts could include a variety of
different things, including what you all have been
alluding to, which is the financial agreenent with
t hese gentlenen and Susan and her team

MR. REDMER Wi ch brings a question for

Susan. A lot of the conversation has been

focused on the cash that's going to be going

out of the investors' checkbook into Evergreen
as part of the -- I'Il refer to it as for
profit investnents.

What do you think is the realistic tinmeline for
there being any kind of return on that investnent?

MS. STITCHER  So, from JARS perspective,
we are |looking at this being a |long-term

comm tnment and a long-terminvestnent.

W understand that the | osses today really need
to be scrutinized in understandi ng where we can
start to make a turn.

| would say in the short term we do need to
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mnimze that. That would be the goal. But |ong
term | would say within 18 nonths to 24 nonths. W
woul d really hope that this will be something that
can stand on its own, to be able support these three
I nvestors, to be able to give the existing
managenent teamto performat a different |evel than
bef ore.

MR. REDMER  Thank you. Van, do you have
anynor e?

MR. DORSEY: No.

MR REDMER We're good. Thank you.

MS. TUNDERMANN:  So, Conmm ssioner, if |
may just wrap up before | hand it back to you
to see if there are any others who wish to
speak.

As you said at the opener, we have worked hard
in the |ast year to draw up the transaction to bring
to you for your approval that protects the conpany
and its policyholders and the comunity. W
devel oped t hese conprehensive applications, both
conversion and acquisition applications. W have

submtted witten testinmony. W have responded to
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your questions in witing, and are happy to continue
to do so, as you deliberate on these applications.

But we think we have built a record that neets
every elenent of the required statutes, and we are
certainly hoping that you will approve both the
conversion and the acquisition as being in the best
Interests of the conmmunity.

MR. REDMER  Thank you.
MR DORSEY:. Thank you all for signing up
wth regard to the hearing.

As | reviewed the hearing sheet, it does not
appear that there are any others who wish to step
forward and testify.

If I"minaccurate in that, if there are any
fol ks up there, out there who wish to testify,
pl ease come forward.

MR REDMER  Should we pull one or two out
and make them say sonet hi ng?

MR DORSEY: So, the transcript wll be
made part of the record. W, the M, will be
reviewing the transcript, as well as the

testinmony that both are witten and will be
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1 heard today, as well as the other elenents of

2 the application, both confidential and what

3 have been made to the public.

4 So, we hope to have the answer soon. And if

5 you all have any questions, |et us know.

6 MR. REDMER |s there anybody on the phone

7 that wi shes to comment?

8 MS. BUSKIRK: | think we're good.

9 MR REDMER Al right. Real good. That
10 concl udes this public hearing. Thank you for
11 com ng.

12 (The Evergreen Hearing was concl uded at
13 9:39 a.m)

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22
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CERTI FI CATE OF SHORTHAND REPORTER - NOTARY PUBLIC

|, Sheri D. Smth, Registered Professional
Reporter, the officer before whomthe foregoing
deposition was taken, do hereby certify that the
foregoing transcript is a true and correct record
the testinony given; that said testinony was taken
by nme stenographically and thereafter reduced to
typewiting under ny direction and that | amneither
counsel for, related to, nor enployed by any of the
parties to this case and have no interest, financial
or otherwise, in its outcone.

I N WTNESS WHERECF, | have hereunto set ny
hand and affixed nmy notarial seal this 15th day of
June, 2017.

My conm ssi on expires Novenber 4, 2020.

REGQ STERED PROFESS|I ONAL REPORTER

NOTARY PUBLI C FOR THE STATE OF MARYLAND
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 1             MR. REDMER:  It's 10:00 o'clock [sic].  My

 2        name is Al Redmer.  I am the commissioner for

 3        the State of Maryland.  I'm sorry.  It's 9:00

 4        o'clock.  I've already screwed up the record.

 5        With me at the table, to my right is Vinnie

 6   O'Grady, who is the Associate Commissioner of

 7   Examination & Auditing.

 8        And to my left is Van Dorsey, who is the

 9   principal counsel from the Office Of The Attorney

10   General.

11        The administration has before it the

12   application of Evergreen Health, Inc., a nonprofit

13   HMO to convert to a for profit status and be

14   acquired by certain investors.

15        The parties wishing to acquire Evergreen are

16   JARS, J-A-R-S, Health Investments, LLC, Anne Arundel

17   Health System, Inc. and LBH Evergreen Holdings, LLC.

18        The application was received by the

19   Administration on May 1st, 2017.  The Administration

20   published notice of the application and of this

21   hearing, which is required by Section 6.5-203 of the

22   State Government Article of the Annotated Code of
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 1   Maryland.

 2        I, as commissioner, may not approve the

 3   conversion and acquisition unless I determine that

 4   it is in the public interests.

 5        In that regard, the criteria on which the

 6   review is based is spelled out in the law.

 7        We have asked Evergreen to provide testimony

 8   today to address the criteria and to explain why

 9   this proposed transaction is indeed in the public

10   interest.

11        Following the testimony, on behalf of

12   Evergreen, others present who have signed up to

13   testify may do so.  Time limits may be imposed for

14   the other interested parties, if necessary.  My

15   staff and I, from time to time, may pose questions.

16        For those individuals who are unable to attend

17   in person, we have established a conference call

18   line.  It sounds like there's a few folks on the

19   line.  I would ask that if you're not speaking, to

20   mute your phone, but please do not place it on hold.

21        As we get started, if you are on the phone,

22   would you mind identifying who you are.
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 1             MR. MOORE:  Hi.  Aaron from Orange Element

 2        is here.  We're representing Evergreen Health,

 3        as an agency for marketing.

 4             MS. BUSKIRK:  Barb Van Buskirk, vice

 5        president of marketing.

 6             MR. REDMER:  Is anybody else on the phone?

 7        Okay.  With that, we will move along.

 8        At this time, I would like to ask Evergreen to

 9   present its first witness, who I believe is

10   Dr. Peter Beilenson, the president and CEO of the

11   company.

12        Peter, welcome, and thanks for participating.

13             MR. BEILENSON:  Thanks for having me,

14        Mr. Redmer, Mr. Dorsey, Mr. O'Grady.  Thank you

15        for the opportunity to present this.

16        I'm pleased to bring this transaction to you

17   and the community to demonstrate that the proposed

18   conversion and acquisition of Evergreen is in the

19   interest of its policyholders and the insurance

20   market and citizens of this state.

21        Ironically, having been initiated as a part of

22   the co-op program of the Affordable Care Act, if it
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 1   weren't for two arcane aspects of the ACA, being

 2   outrageous payments required of us from the fatally

 3   flawed risk adjustment process and the federal

 4   government not paying Evergreen what we were owed

 5   under the risk quota program, we would not be here

 6   today.

 7        In fact, prior to the imposition of the risk

 8   adjustment payment, we were actually profiters, if

 9   you remember.

10        In late June of 2016, after we were assessed a

11   $24,000,000 risk adjustment payment, over 28 percent

12   of our entire revenue for the year, all of which we

13   had to pay to our chief competitor in the Maryland

14   marketplace, we found ourselves in a financially

15   untenable situation.  Simply put, without

16   significant capital to refill our completed

17   reserves, we could not continue to operate.

18        With that said, July of 2016, we began pursuing

19   potential investors, seeking a transaction that

20   would save Evergreen and be good for our customers

21   in the community, in part, by continuing to provide

22   for a mutual competitor in the marketplace.
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 1        After talking with more than 75 potential

 2   investors from all over the country, we eventually

 3   selected three local investors with great

 4   reputations in the state, JARS, Anne Arundel Health

 5   System and LifeBridge Health.

 6        After negotiations with both state and federal

 7   regulators, as you are very cognizant of, we emerged

 8   from the co-op program on January 19th, 2017.  At

 9   that time, I can't remember exactly.

10        And with our three partners, filed an

11   application as the commissioner mentioned, to

12   convert to a for profit entity on May 1st, 2017.

13        Since that time, we have responded to written

14   questions from the MIA and submitted written

15   testimony for this hearing.  All of this taken

16   together shows that this transaction is in the

17   public interest.

18        In support of this conclusion, you will hear

19   from Evergreen's valuation and community impact

20   experts.  These three purchasers will speak later

21   this morning as well.

22        I would like to thank the purchasers,
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 1   especially Mark Quente for working so hard to save

 2   Evergreen.  Mark and JARS became involved last

 3   October and has stood by in the roller coaster ride

 4   that has been this experience for the past several

 5   months, and we are very grateful to them.

 6        I'd like to thank our regulatory counsel, Ren

 7   Tundermann, for her tremendous efforts in speeding

 8   this process along in the midst of chaos at times.

 9        I'd like to thank our brokers, many of whom

10   have worked hard to continue to sell our plans even

11   in the face of an uncertain future.

12        But most of all, I would like to thank all of

13   Evergreen's employees.  This has been an incredibly

14   stressful year, not knowing whether we would survive

15   and often it felt like, with the caseload, and

16   endless limbo.

17        Our employees have worked very hard to keep the

18   company alive and moving forward, and I am very

19   proud of the entire team.

20        Finally, we are very excited about the

21   opportunities ahead for Evergreen Health.  Having

22   two health systems and a cadre of experienced
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 1   insurance and health care executives on our team

 2   opens the door to many new possibilities.

 3        We look forward to Evergreen emerging stronger

 4   than ever before.

 5        I look forward to answering your questions and

 6   look forward to having our experts and the

 7   purchasers come forward after me.

 8             MR. REDMER:  Any questions?

 9             MR. DORSEY:  Two questions, I think.  As

10        for as you know, it's the investors' intentions

11        to retaining you as CEO immediately following

12        the acquisition, correct?

13             MR. BEILENSON:  Yes.

14             MR. DORSEY:  And there are no retention

15        bonuses or anything of that nature?

16             MR. BEILENSON:  That is correct.

17             MR. REDMER:  Ren, did you want to say

18        anything, or are you just here to control him?

19             MS. TUNDERMANN:  I'm wrangling the truth.

20        I'm fine.

21             MR. REDMER:  Thank you, Van.

22             MR. DORSEY:  Is the next witness
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 1        Ms. Novak?

 2             MS. TUNDERMANN:  No.  The next witness

 3        will be Mr. Swartley from Moss-Adams --

 4             MR. DORSEY:  Sure.  Very good.

 5             MS. TUNDERMANN:  -- our valuation expert.

 6             MR. SWARTLEY:  Where would you like me?

 7             MS. TUNDERMANN:  Here.  You guys can

 8        switch.

 9        Calvin will summarize his valuation analysis,

10   including his updated analysis, and then he will be

11   glad to answer any questions.

12             MR. REDMER:  If you don't mind, give your

13        name and company for the record.

14             MR. SWARTLEY:  Yes.  Absolutely.  My name

15        is Calvin Swartley, and I'm with Moss-Adams,

16        LLP.

17        We're a regional accounting form based on the

18   west coast.  Within that firm -- it's a traditional

19   tax and accounting firm -- I'm part of the firm's

20   valuation and services group.  And I was asked to

21   perform a valuation of Evergreen.

22        We were retained last August, August of 2016,
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 1   and performed a valuation, with an effective date of

 2   September 15th, which we provided to management in a

 3   draft form.

 4        After that time, we were asked to later update

 5   our valuation and prepare it as of the date of

 6   January 31st, 2017.

 7        Within the valuation, we considered approaches

 8   that would be applicable for Evergreen, including

 9   income approaches, market approaches, asset-based

10   approaches.  We also considered some of the

11   assumptions that are included in your state

12   statutes, which considered 100 percent of the

13   company being sold or the equity of it being sold,

14   the earnings capacity, the market, the net asset

15   value, whether or not a controlled premium would be

16   applicable, and to make sure that we considered it

17   on an ongoing concern basis, which basically assumes

18   that it will continue into the future.  Not that it

19   would be liquidated.

20        Within our analysis, we looked at various

21   measures within each of the approaches.  We

22   collected a great deal of data from the company,
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 1   including past financial performance, future

 2   expectations.  We looked at things that are going on

 3   out in the market place, local economy demographics,

 4   things of that nature to assess how the company is

 5   doing and how it will perform going forward.

 6        Within our analysis, we prepared an income

 7   approach to look at future cash flows of the

 8   company, both on a going forward basis, but we also

 9   did consider a wind-down scenario, assuming that

10   this conversion, if it did not happen, what would

11   the company be like.

12        We looked out to the marketplace for comparable

13   transactions of other insurance companies that have

14   been bought and sold, as well as public companies

15   and how they trade in the marketplace.

16        And, finally, we looked at the company's

17   balance sheet and its assets versus its liabilities.

18        Based on our assessment of all of those facts,

19   characteristics, at the time of January 31st, most

20   of our approaches were indicating that there was

21   zero equity or surplus value.  Although there were

22   assets on the books, the liabilities outscript those
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 1   and made it essentially either a zero or a negative

 2   number.

 3        As we have moved forward from that point, we

 4   have been asked to look at the performance of the

 5   company and consider what that performance would do

 6   in light of the valuation and where we were coming

 7   out.

 8        And since that time, it's my understanding,

 9   from the information I've been provided, one, there

10   were some adjustments to the year-end financials,

11   which actually made it look worse than the

12   information we have been provided, and, two, that it

13   continues to operate with losses and has had to take

14   on more surplus notes to just fund its operations.

15        So, at this point in time, unless there is

16   there something that we weren't provided, it would

17   be difficult for us to say that the value has

18   increased from the values that we have provided in

19   January.

20             MR. REDMER:  Two questions:  This is

21        probably pretty basic.  But could you describe

22        what a controlled premium is?
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 1             MR. SWARTLEY:  Oh, sure.  That's a very

 2        good question.  And within our report, one of

 3        the things that we show is some of the data

 4        that might support that.

 5        So, oftentimes, when a company is looking to

 6   acquire another company, especially when you start

 7   to look at public companies, you'll see that at the

 8   point that there's an announcement, the buyers are

 9   willing to pay a price higher than the price that

10   the shares are trading in the open market at that

11   point in time.

12             MR. REDMER:  Right.

13             MR. SWARTLEY:  And I think it's important

14        to note that we see that often, that the buyer

15        feels that they may have some synergies or cost

16        efficiencies or other things that make them

17        think that we can pay a premium above what the

18        market says, you know, what a tradeable amount

19        would be.

20        So, we did consider that within our analysis.

21             MR. REDMER:  Got it.  Let's take Evergreen

22        out of it for a second, because I think we'll
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 1        probably get into these questions when we speak

 2        to the investors.  But you do this in other

 3        industries for other companies.  So, let's take

 4        Evergreen out of it.

 5        One of the general questions is going to be if

 6   a company does not have a value, then why is another

 7   company going to be interested in purchasing that

 8   for whatever amount of money.

 9        So, could you walk through just the laundry

10   list of some of the reasons that one company would

11   pay money to buy another company that technically

12   may not have any value.

13        A    Sure.  And that's a very good question.

14   Obviously, having not talked to the investors, I

15   don't know their motivations.

16             MR. REDMER:  Right.  We'll ask them.

17             MR. SWARTLEY:  But in general -- yeah.

18        But in general, you raise a good question,

19        because there are motivations for companies to

20        buy other companies, depending on situations

21        and facts and circumstances.  Sometimes that

22        can be that the buyer feels that they can do a
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 1        better job running the company.  So, they can

 2        come in, and I'll say fix some of the things

 3        that maybe weren't working correctly, or they

 4        may see that there's an opportunity to enhance

 5        their own business line.  So, vertical

 6        integration is a term we often use.

 7        So, taking that company, putting it with some

 8   of the services that they already provide and trying

 9   to provide a more complete package and control both

10   revenue and costs of everything that's going on.

11   Sometimes there are predatory reasons for doing

12   that, taking a competitor out of the marketplace,

13   and, also, at times, there are situations where the

14   other company that is struggling, and someone is

15   willing to come in, buy it and try to liquidate it

16   and see if they can walk away with anything at the

17   end of the day.

18             MR. REDMER:  Right.

19             MR. SWARTLEY:  So, those would be many of

20        the reasons that someone may be willing to pay

21        for a company, any type of company.

22             MR. REDMER:  Right.  Thank you.  Van?
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 1             MR. DORSEY:  Is it an accurate summary of

 2        your testimony from your report, that in this

 3        case, because of the liabilities exceed the

 4        assets, that in your view, there are no public

 5        assets in this case?

 6             MR. SWARTLEY:  Correct.  Yes.

 7             MR. REDMER:  Great.  Thank you.

 8             MR. SWARTLEY:  Thank you.

 9             MS. TUNDERMANN:  Next, we will hear from

10        Donna Novac.  She did the community impact

11        analysis for Evergreen.

12             MS. NOVAK:  Good morning.  I am Donna

13        Novac with NovaRest Consulting.  NovaRest

14        Consulting is an actuarial consulting firm

15        that works with state and federal insurance

16        underwriters.

17        We were asked to look at the community impact

18   of this proposed acquisition.  And our final report

19   was published on or about April 27th, and it's

20   available.  And, so, what I am going to be

21   summarizing is actually the April 27th report from

22   this year.
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 1        One of the things that we found from our

 2   analysis is that this acquisition would be

 3   beneficial to the community served by Evergreen,

 4   that it would not be detrimental to the availability

 5   or access to health services.

 6        As we've already heard, Evergreen has a very

 7   hazardous financial situation right now, and this

 8   acquisition would provide the funds to bring the

 9   risk-based capital or solvency up to an acceptable

10   level.

11        Evergreen, right now, offers products in the

12   small group and large group markets.  Because of its

13   financial condition, it's been suppressed from

14   offering products in the individual market in 2017.

15   But once its financial condition is satisfactory,

16   and that suppression is raised, it intends to enter

17   into the individual market also.

18        There are approximately five carriers in the

19   individual market right now.  Some of those

20   affiliated, and approximately 11 in the small group

21   market.  Some of those are affiliated.  And what

22   Evergreen brings is further competition in those
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 1   markets.

 2        It's been showing over and over again that the

 3   more competitors in the health insurance market, the

 4   premiums tend to be lower.  Also, Evergreen provides

 5   additional choice in those markets as far as

 6   products.

 7        If Evergreen cannot continue, if this

 8   acquisition is not in place, its members will have

 9   to find another carrier, Evergreen being their

10   carrier of choice.  They will have to find another

11   carrier.  They will possibly have to pay higher

12   premiums for similar benefits when they change

13   carriers, and they may have to change provider

14   networks and wouldn't have the choice of providers.

15        The acquirers have said that at the beginning,

16   right after the acquisition, they do not intend to

17   change the products or the operations of Evergreen;

18   although they are intending to look at best

19   practices in the marketplace, and potentially make

20   some changes going forward.

21        Premiums will probably increase, because

22   Evergreen, right now, is not subject to premium tax,
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 1   and they will be subject to premium tax once it's

 2   for profit.  And, also, premiums will have to cover

 3   any return on investment with the prior example.

 4        But in support of having affordable health

 5   care, being acquirers are committed to bringing the

 6   risk-based capital up to 71 percent at the time of

 7   acquisition, and they are going to make efforts to

 8   bring the risk-based capital up to 200 percent by

 9   the end of 2018.

10        As far as equitability to the current members,

11   ACA does not allow underwriting and does not allow

12   pricing on morbidity.  The acquirers are not

13   intending to change the underwriting standards in

14   the large group market, but, again, if the

15   acquisition does not take place, the members will

16   have to find insurance with another carrier and

17   potentially have a higher price and potentially have

18   to change networks.  Are there any questions?

19             MR. REDMER:  We're good.  Thank you very

20        much.

21             MS. TUNDERMANN:  One of the other required

22        elements in a conversion application is an
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 1        analysis of the anti-trust issues.

 2        Evergreen submitted a legal opinion in that

 3   regard, and the principal counsel asked for some

 4   additional analysis, which was provided.

 5        And with that, we felt we didn't need the

 6   lawyer to appear and speak to his opinion, that the

 7   opinions speaks for itself.

 8             MR. DORSEY:  And both documents are in

 9        front of you.

10             MS. TUNDERMANN:  Yes.  So, now, we would

11        like to introduce you to our investors, and let

12        you hear from them and talk with them about

13        their plans for Evergreen.  We've arranged to

14        have one representative of each of the

15        investors, so that you may ask questions of

16        each of them.  But we'll begin with the opening

17        statement.

18             MR. JOSHI:  Thank you.  Good morning,

19        everyone.  My name is Maulik Joshi, and I'm the

20        executive vice president and chief operating

21        officer for the Anne Arundel Health System.

22        Thank you, Mr. Commissioner, Mr. Associate
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 1        Commissioner, Mr. Dorsey.  We appreciate the

 2        opportunity.

 3        On behalf of the investors, JARS Health

 4   Investments, LLC, LifeBridge Health and Anne Arundel

 5   Health System, we appreciate the opportunity to

 6   appear before you today in support of Evergreen

 7   Health application to convert to a nonprofit to a

 8   for profit company and our application to acquire

 9   Evergreen Health.

10        As I think, as you've heard earlier, we know

11   Evergreen's path to this day has been long and

12   challenging, but we want to share with you how

13   excited we are for the commissioner and the

14   community, in terms of the path for should these

15   applications be approved.

16        So, first, speaking for Anne Arundel Health

17   System, it has been a core tenet of our strategic

18   plan to create a provider sponsored health plan.  We

19   developed a strategic plan in 2009 called Vision

20   20/20, and again, the core strategic and issue is

21   developing a provider sponsored health plan.

22        Our investment in Evergreen is a strategic
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 1   investment.  We want to further population health

 2   and further integrate the delivery of care and the

 3   financing.

 4        Our Anne Arundel Health System mission is to

 5   enhance the health of the people we serve, and

 6   providing affordable health care coverage to

 7   Maryland citizens is essential to health.  We know

 8   that health insurance is related to better access.

 9   Better access relates to better care, and better

10   care relates to better health.  That's the triple A,

11   and we are aligned with Evergreen on the Triple A --

12   best care, best service, lowest costs possible.

13        My colleagues and I have had many conversations

14   with the leadership of LifeBridge and with JARS, and

15   we certainly know that we share a common vision in

16   terms of where we're going.  While the creation of a

17   provider sponsored health plan is not part of

18   LifeBridge's core strategic plan, they, like us,

19   view the acquisition of Evergreen as an exceptional

20   opportunity to improve the health of the citizens of

21   Maryland.

22        I know, also, that LifeBridge Health has

�

0026

 1   developed a geographically disseminated network of

 2   providers across the health care, continuing from

 3   urgent care to nursing homes, hospice care, and

 4   bringing these providers into the Evergreen provider

 5   network will give its members more choices and

 6   easier access to services.

 7        Also, Anne Arundel Health and LifeBridge Health

 8   serve different areas of the state.  So, our

 9   interests -- and ours are complimentary, not

10   entitlement.

11        The motivation of JARS is a little different

12   than as its partners.  JARS is an investment vehicle

13   founded by a group of individuals and entities with

14   over 100 years of experience working within the

15   continuing care of the Maryland health care

16   industry, including over 20 years of experience in

17   health insurance.  JARS was created with the dual

18   goals of a long-term financial forum of its

19   investment, coupled with providing capital to

20   preserve competition in the Maryland marketplace

21   while insuring that the citizens of Maryland receive

22   the highest quality of care.
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 1        This type of investment, we probably refer to

 2   as socially responsible investing or socially

 3   conscious investing.

 4        So, simply put, this transaction is in the

 5   public interest, because it preserves a lower cost,

 6   high quality competitor in the Maryland health

 7   insurance markets.

 8        Evergreen has a great history, going from zero

 9   to over 35,000 members in three years of operations.

10   Evergreen was founded on the promise of providing

11   affordable, high quality health insurance to members

12   of our community.  However, the company needs to be

13   financially viable.

14        With the competence and experience and

15   financial wear with all of JARS, LifeBridge Health,

16   and Anne Arundel Health System, standing behind

17   Evergreen, Evergreen will achieve financial

18   stability and independence.  The collective

19   knowledge, experiences and resources that the

20   partners can bring will benefit the citizens of the

21   state of Maryland and only improve health care

22   delivery to the policyholders.
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 1        Should the MIA approve the conversion of

 2   Evergreen, a not for profit to a for profit health

 3   insurer, and the partners' subsequent controlling

 4   investments, the partners will control of Evergreen

 5   with cash, there will be no debt to be financed by

 6   Evergreen.

 7        To date, the partners have collectively made

 8   surplus loans of $12,000,000.

 9        Upon closing, the purchasers will provide

10   additional investments, which are sufficient for

11   Evergreen to satisfy the requirements for its

12   certificate of authority, including the minimum

13   surplus and RBC requirements of Maryland Law.

14        The partners are fully aware for the potential

15   need for additional capital, and as Evergreen grows

16   in the future, and we are prepared to provide those

17   funds, as necessary.

18        The strong financial condition of the partners

19   will bring financial stability to Evergreen.  This

20   transaction will not substantially lessen

21   competition in the Maryland insurance market or tend

22   to create a monopoly, because none of the purchasers
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 1   own an interest in any carrier that competes with

 2   Evergreen in any market in which it participates in.

 3        Our Form A application provides some

 4   information regarding our plans for Evergreen's post

 5   closing.  We said that we have no plans to declare

 6   any extraordinary dividend, to liquidate or sell any

 7   of Evergreen's assets, or to merge Evergreen with

 8   any other entity.

 9        We said we have no plans to make any material

10   change in the business operations or corporate

11   structure of Evergreen.

12        Now, let me just provide a couple of colored

13   commentary around this.  First of all, we know that

14   Evergreen's existing policyholders may be concerned

15   about this transaction and what it means for them in

16   the immediate future.

17        We will impose no mid-term changes to the

18   existing forms or rates of any current Evergreen

19   policyholder.  Evergreen currently writes in a small

20   and large group markets, and we are aware that it

21   has filed forms and rates both for the small and

22   individual markets for 2018.
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 1        We understand that these filings are under

 2   review at the Insurance Administration, and expect

 3   that Evergreen will keep us apprized of developments

 4   prior to closing.

 5        We know that Evergreen is advised by Milliman

 6   with regard to its rate filings, and we do not

 7   expect to change that relationship after closing.

 8        Evergreen has an extensive provider network,

 9   both directly contracted in Maryland and through a

10   national leased network.  We expect to encourage and

11   support Evergreen's expansion of its directly

12   contracted Maryland network post closing, including,

13   of course, the providers associated with as the

14   investors.

15        We stated in the forma that there are no

16   employment consultation, advisory or management

17   contracts concerning Evergreen.  We intend that

18   Evergreen be managed by its leadership team, and its

19   board, and have no plans to outsource management to

20   any of them.

21        We have spoken with Dr. Beilenson, and Dan

22   Ragan and Dustin Plantholt, encouraging them to stay
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 1   with the company post closing.

 2        After closing, the board will further assess

 3   the strengths and weaknesses of the leadership team

 4   and group at Evergreen.

 5        The purchasers expect the new board will wish

 6   to have one or more management level employees as a

 7   result of that assessment.  We also intend to engage

 8   a consultant post closing to assist in assessing

 9   potential changes in management and improvements to

10   operations.  There is no employee incentive or bonus

11   plan in place at Evergreen in 2017.

12        After closing, we expect a new board will

13   establish an incentive or bonus plan to align with

14   the employees' performance and with the company's

15   goals and objectives, which is the Triple A.

16        We appreciate the support and patience of the

17   administration, as well as Evergreen's

18   policyholders, brokers and employees, as we

19   undertook detailed due diligence with the company

20   and crafted a deal structure that best serves the

21   company's policyholders and the company.

22        We believe this transaction is in the public
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 1   interests and should be approved.

 2        Now, let me introduce my two colleagues, Dave

 3   and Susan.

 4             MS. STITCHER:  Good morning.  My name is

 5        Susan Stitcher.  I am a member of the JARS

 6        health care investment group.  I have over 25

 7        years of health care experience, predominantly

 8        in the Maryland market.  I was employed by

 9        consulting companies, as well as a Maryland

10        hospital.  And I currently am a small business

11        owner with an organization that focuses on

12        medical record and the accuracy.

13        I appreciate the opportunity to be part of the

14   team.

15             MR. KRAJEWSKI:  Good morning.  I'm very

16        excited to be here.  My name is David

17        Krajewski.  I have been with LifeBridge for 26

18        years now.  Prior to that, I was with Arthur

19        Andersen, as a health care consultant on the

20        division side.

21        I have 31 years of experience in health care.

22   I served as the executive vice president at
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 1   LifeBridge and the CFO, and I'm the president of

 2   LifeBridge partners, which is the entity that we

 3   invested in in Evergreen.

 4             MR. REDMER:  So, now, thank you.  Your

 5        opening statement provided a laundry list of

 6        questions, of which none of them have anything

 7        to do with whether this is in the public

 8        interests.

 9        So, I look forward to asking you those

10   questions at another time.  Vinnie, any questions?

11             MR. O'GRADY:  Sure.  So, I appreciate your

12        introductory comments on generically why you

13        all would be interested in this acquisition,

14        but let me just ask the investors collectively.

15        The valuation analysis that Moss-Adams

16   prepared, concluded that the fair market value is

17   zero, and, you know, the financial statement show a

18   negative surplus.

19        So, could you just please explain, you know,

20   why you all believe that it is a good investment for

21   you all to invest the 12,000,000 to date, plus the

22   substantial amounts that remain and the additional
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 1   amounts --

 2             MR. KRAJEWSKI:  There's two parts to that

 3        answer.  One is it's a strategic investment for

 4        at least two of us.  We believe this is an

 5        investment not only that has a financial return

 6        in the future, but an investment that will help

 7        us to maintain the triple A to support the

 8        waiver that Maryland has with Health Services

 9        Cost Review Commission.  So, it's a very

10        strategic asset for us.

11        In addition to it, we believe that an insurance

12   company that is well run, with proper

13   capitalization, and the right partnership -- so, we

14   believe that we bring those partnerships to the

15   table -- will, in the future, have value.  There's

16   risks associated with that, certainly, and there is

17   going to take some period of time to get it to that

18   point where it would be producing profit and surplus

19   and have future value.  But we believe we can get it

20   there.

21             MR. O'GRADY:  Do you have any further

22        specifics about how you think you will get
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 1        there?

 2        We recognize that some of the federal charges

 3   that Dr. Beilenson mentioned, certainly contributed

 4   to develop these financial problems and the risk

 5   adjustment program still exists.

 6        And, so, just anymore detailed thoughts on how

 7   you believe you will achieve profitability?

 8             MR. KRAJEWSKI:  Certainly, the scale is

 9        one of them.  So, the partnerships we believe

10        will allow us to build the membership and run

11        the scale of the companies, such as the revenue

12        based at the top is larger.  But, also, being

13        providers, we also believe that we can reduce

14        the revenue loss ratios, manage the medical

15        expenses in a way that they will be around 85

16        percent or so and get the overhead down to less

17        than 15 percent.

18        So, we're looking at it from that standpoint.

19   That loss ratio, do we think we can get it to

20   85 percent?  Probably.  Can we get the overhead down

21   to 15 percent?  We believe we can.  In order to do

22   that, we also have to build the scale of the
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 1   company.

 2             MR. O'GRADY:  So, you mentioned the

 3        commitments to bring the surplus to certain

 4        levels.

 5        So, let's assume for a moment that the MIA

 6   approves transactions.  And let's assume for a

 7   moment, for the sake of discussion, the company

 8   continues to incur losses.  Let's just make that

 9   assumption.

10        Have the investors determined any point at

11   which you would walk away from the monies invested

12   to date as opposed to continuing to invest any

13   additional monies?

14             MR. JOSHI:  We have invested in Evergreen

15        to make it successful.  So, we understand the

16        capital requirements, and we understand that

17        there will be further capital requirements.

18        Again, we are not walking away easily.  We are

19   here to make this -- and as David has said, "this is

20   a strategic investment."  So, we're here to make it

21   worth it.

22             MR. DORSEY:  You've done your due
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 1        diligence.

 2             MR. JOSHI:  We've done our due diligence.

 3             MR. DORSEY:  To follow up that question,

 4        in the stock purchase agreement, there is a

 5        commitment to get the RBC levels to 200 percent

 6        RBC.

 7        I just want to hear who you acknowledged tat,

 8   if I could.  And because that's a significant factor

 9   for us in determining whether the surplus levels are

10   going to be at a sufficient level.

11             MR. KRAJEWSKI:  Right.  We understand

12        that, and when we did our due diligence, that

13        was in our prior capital planning process, that

14        we need to get the company to 200 percent RBC.

15        So, all three of the investors have looked at

16   that, and at this point in time, we believe that

17   that is something we are willing to form again.

18             MR. DORSEY:  In the stock purchase

19        agreement, it uses the phrase "commercially

20        reasonable efforts to get it to that level."

21        What does that mean to you?

22             MS. TUNDERMANN:  In some ways, that's a
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 1        lawyer question.  So, if you ever --

 2             MR. REDMER:  Aren't they all?

 3             MS. TUNDERMANN:  I mean, feel free to

 4        answer.  But if you would like to refer to

 5        George Nemphos, I'm sure he will be glad to

 6        answer.

 7             MR. DORSEY:  In this case, I'll just ask

 8        if you agree with counsel.

 9             MR. KRAJEWSKI:  We will defer to George.

10        Understand that the investors are going to be

11        putting 25,000,000 to $30,000,000 on the onset.

12        So, we're not taking that type of investment

13        lightly.

14        So, we would not walk away very easily.  That

15   is a large investment, and we anticipate future

16   investments beyond that.

17        But I'll let George answer the lawyer part of

18   the question.

19             MR. NEMPHOS:  Thanks.  Good morning.  The

20        term "commercially reasonable efforts," Van, as

21        you know, is a legal term.

22        Specifically, from a legal standpoint, it means
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 1   such efforts that a person or a business in the same

 2   position would reasonably take to ensure the outcome

 3   necessary to be sought.

 4        In this case, what we view that as is that as

 5   it moves forward, Evergreen is clearly its own

 6   entity, with the guidance, help and support of these

 7   three individual partners.  It's the intention, as

 8   you've heard this morning already, that it become a

 9   financially viable and capable company in delivering

10   the product and assisting in the health care that is

11   in the state of Maryland.

12        To do that, there is certain regulatory

13   requirements with regard to RBC level.  And as

14   investors, they are willing to take the steps that

15   another person or entity would be in in a similar

16   situation would be in and reasonably would take, and

17   we're to ensure that.

18        Does that mean that these three partners, in

19   the end, will continue to work and try to

20   financially support and finance the needs?  Yes.

21   But as a living, breathing entity, in and of itself,

22   they will have to examine the situation each time
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 1   for what's the best method, the best way, and the

 2   best process in which to get to 200 percent.

 3        And as in any business, those commercially

 4   reasonable efforts could include a variety of

 5   different things, including what you all have been

 6   alluding to, which is the financial agreement with

 7   these gentlemen and Susan and her team.

 8             MR. REDMER:  Which brings a question for

 9        Susan.  A lot of the conversation has been

10        focused on the cash that's going to be going

11        out of the investors' checkbook into Evergreen

12        as part of the -- I'll refer to it as for

13        profit investments.

14        What do you think is the realistic timeline for

15   there being any kind of return on that investment?

16             MS. STITCHER:  So, from JARS' perspective,

17        we are looking at this being a long-term

18        commitment and a long-term investment.

19        We understand that the losses today really need

20   to be scrutinized in understanding where we can

21   start to make a turn.

22        I would say in the short term, we do need to
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 1   minimize that.  That would be the goal.  But long

 2   term, I would say within 18 months to 24 months.  We

 3   would really hope that this will be something that

 4   can stand on its own, to be able support these three

 5   investors, to be able to give the existing

 6   management team to perform at a different level than

 7   before.

 8             MR. REDMER:  Thank you.  Van, do you have

 9        anymore?

10             MR. DORSEY:  No.

11             MR. REDMER:  We're good.  Thank you.

12             MS. TUNDERMANN:  So, Commissioner, if I

13        may just wrap up before I hand it back to you

14        to see if there are any others who wish to

15        speak.

16        As you said at the opener, we have worked hard

17   in the last year to draw up the transaction to bring

18   to you for your approval that protects the company

19   and its policyholders and the community.  We

20   developed these comprehensive applications, both

21   conversion and acquisition applications.  We have

22   submitted written testimony.  We have responded to
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 1   your questions in writing, and are happy to continue

 2   to do so, as you deliberate on these applications.

 3        But we think we have built a record that meets

 4   every element of the required statutes, and we are

 5   certainly hoping that you will approve both the

 6   conversion and the acquisition as being in the best

 7   interests of the community.

 8             MR. REDMER:  Thank you.

 9             MR. DORSEY:  Thank you all for signing up

10        with regard to the hearing.

11        As I reviewed the hearing sheet, it does not

12   appear that there are any others who wish to step

13   forward and testify.

14        If I'm inaccurate in that, if there are any

15   folks up there, out there who wish to testify,

16   please come forward.

17             MR. REDMER:  Should we pull one or two out

18        and make them say something?

19             MR. DORSEY:  So, the transcript will be

20        made part of the record.  We, the MI, will be

21        reviewing the transcript, as well as the

22        testimony that both are written and will be

�

0043

 1        heard today, as well as the other elements of

 2        the application, both confidential and what

 3        have been made to the public.

 4        So, we hope to have the answer soon.  And if

 5   you all have any questions, let us know.

 6             MR. REDMER:  Is there anybody on the phone

 7        that wishes to comment?

 8             MS. BUSKIRK:  I think we're good.

 9             MR. REDMER:  All right.  Real good.  That

10        concludes this public hearing.  Thank you for

11        coming.

12        (The Evergreen Hearing was concluded at

13   9:39 a.m.)
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           1             MR. REDMER:  It's 10:00 o'clock [sic].  My



           2        name is Al Redmer.  I am the commissioner for



           3        the State of Maryland.  I'm sorry.  It's 9:00



           4        o'clock.  I've already screwed up the record.



           5        With me at the table, to my right is Vinnie



           6   O'Grady, who is the Associate Commissioner of



           7   Examination & Auditing.



           8        And to my left is Van Dorsey, who is the



           9   principal counsel from the Office Of The Attorney



          10   General.



          11        The administration has before it the



          12   application of Evergreen Health, Inc., a nonprofit



          13   HMO to convert to a for profit status and be



          14   acquired by certain investors.



          15        The parties wishing to acquire Evergreen are



          16   JARS, J-A-R-S, Health Investments, LLC, Anne Arundel



          17   Health System, Inc. and LBH Evergreen Holdings, LLC.



          18        The application was received by the



          19   Administration on May 1st, 2017.  The Administration



          20   published notice of the application and of this



          21   hearing, which is required by Section 6.5-203 of the



          22   State Government Article of the Annotated Code of
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           1   Maryland.



           2        I, as commissioner, may not approve the



           3   conversion and acquisition unless I determine that



           4   it is in the public interests.



           5        In that regard, the criteria on which the



           6   review is based is spelled out in the law.



           7        We have asked Evergreen to provide testimony



           8   today to address the criteria and to explain why



           9   this proposed transaction is indeed in the public



          10   interest.



          11        Following the testimony, on behalf of



          12   Evergreen, others present who have signed up to



          13   testify may do so.  Time limits may be imposed for



          14   the other interested parties, if necessary.  My



          15   staff and I, from time to time, may pose questions.



          16        For those individuals who are unable to attend



          17   in person, we have established a conference call



          18   line.  It sounds like there's a few folks on the



          19   line.  I would ask that if you're not speaking, to



          20   mute your phone, but please do not place it on hold.



          21        As we get started, if you are on the phone,



          22   would you mind identifying who you are.
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           1             MR. MOORE:  Hi.  Aaron from Orange Element



           2        is here.  We're representing Evergreen Health,



           3        as an agency for marketing.



           4             MS. BUSKIRK:  Barb Van Buskirk, vice



           5        president of marketing.



           6             MR. REDMER:  Is anybody else on the phone?



           7        Okay.  With that, we will move along.



           8        At this time, I would like to ask Evergreen to



           9   present its first witness, who I believe is



          10   Dr. Peter Beilenson, the president and CEO of the



          11   company.



          12        Peter, welcome, and thanks for participating.



          13             MR. BEILENSON:  Thanks for having me,



          14        Mr. Redmer, Mr. Dorsey, Mr. O'Grady.  Thank you



          15        for the opportunity to present this.



          16        I'm pleased to bring this transaction to you



          17   and the community to demonstrate that the proposed



          18   conversion and acquisition of Evergreen is in the



          19   interest of its policyholders and the insurance



          20   market and citizens of this state.



          21        Ironically, having been initiated as a part of



          22   the co-op program of the Affordable Care Act, if it
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           1   weren't for two arcane aspects of the ACA, being



           2   outrageous payments required of us from the fatally



           3   flawed risk adjustment process and the federal



           4   government not paying Evergreen what we were owed



           5   under the risk quota program, we would not be here



           6   today.



           7        In fact, prior to the imposition of the risk



           8   adjustment payment, we were actually profiters, if



           9   you remember.



          10        In late June of 2016, after we were assessed a



          11   $24,000,000 risk adjustment payment, over 28 percent



          12   of our entire revenue for the year, all of which we



          13   had to pay to our chief competitor in the Maryland



          14   marketplace, we found ourselves in a financially



          15   untenable situation.  Simply put, without



          16   significant capital to refill our completed



          17   reserves, we could not continue to operate.



          18        With that said, July of 2016, we began pursuing



          19   potential investors, seeking a transaction that



          20   would save Evergreen and be good for our customers



          21   in the community, in part, by continuing to provide



          22   for a mutual competitor in the marketplace.
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           1        After talking with more than 75 potential



           2   investors from all over the country, we eventually



           3   selected three local investors with great



           4   reputations in the state, JARS, Anne Arundel Health



           5   System and LifeBridge Health.



           6        After negotiations with both state and federal



           7   regulators, as you are very cognizant of, we emerged



           8   from the co-op program on January 19th, 2017.  At



           9   that time, I can't remember exactly.



          10        And with our three partners, filed an



          11   application as the commissioner mentioned, to



          12   convert to a for profit entity on May 1st, 2017.



          13        Since that time, we have responded to written



          14   questions from the MIA and submitted written



          15   testimony for this hearing.  All of this taken



          16   together shows that this transaction is in the



          17   public interest.



          18        In support of this conclusion, you will hear



          19   from Evergreen's valuation and community impact



          20   experts.  These three purchasers will speak later



          21   this morning as well.



          22        I would like to thank the purchasers,
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           1   especially Mark Quente for working so hard to save



           2   Evergreen.  Mark and JARS became involved last



           3   October and has stood by in the roller coaster ride



           4   that has been this experience for the past several



           5   months, and we are very grateful to them.



           6        I'd like to thank our regulatory counsel, Ren



           7   Tundermann, for her tremendous efforts in speeding



           8   this process along in the midst of chaos at times.



           9        I'd like to thank our brokers, many of whom



          10   have worked hard to continue to sell our plans even



          11   in the face of an uncertain future.



          12        But most of all, I would like to thank all of



          13   Evergreen's employees.  This has been an incredibly



          14   stressful year, not knowing whether we would survive



          15   and often it felt like, with the caseload, and



          16   endless limbo.



          17        Our employees have worked very hard to keep the



          18   company alive and moving forward, and I am very



          19   proud of the entire team.



          20        Finally, we are very excited about the



          21   opportunities ahead for Evergreen Health.  Having



          22   two health systems and a cadre of experienced
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           1   insurance and health care executives on our team



           2   opens the door to many new possibilities.



           3        We look forward to Evergreen emerging stronger



           4   than ever before.



           5        I look forward to answering your questions and



           6   look forward to having our experts and the



           7   purchasers come forward after me.



           8             MR. REDMER:  Any questions?



           9             MR. DORSEY:  Two questions, I think.  As



          10        for as you know, it's the investors' intentions



          11        to retaining you as CEO immediately following



          12        the acquisition, correct?



          13             MR. BEILENSON:  Yes.



          14             MR. DORSEY:  And there are no retention



          15        bonuses or anything of that nature?



          16             MR. BEILENSON:  That is correct.



          17             MR. REDMER:  Ren, did you want to say



          18        anything, or are you just here to control him?



          19             MS. TUNDERMANN:  I'm wrangling the truth.



          20        I'm fine.



          21             MR. REDMER:  Thank you, Van.



          22             MR. DORSEY:  Is the next witness
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           1        Ms. Novak?



           2             MS. TUNDERMANN:  No.  The next witness



           3        will be Mr. Swartley from Moss-Adams --



           4             MR. DORSEY:  Sure.  Very good.



           5             MS. TUNDERMANN:  -- our valuation expert.



           6             MR. SWARTLEY:  Where would you like me?



           7             MS. TUNDERMANN:  Here.  You guys can



           8        switch.



           9        Calvin will summarize his valuation analysis,



          10   including his updated analysis, and then he will be



          11   glad to answer any questions.



          12             MR. REDMER:  If you don't mind, give your



          13        name and company for the record.



          14             MR. SWARTLEY:  Yes.  Absolutely.  My name



          15        is Calvin Swartley, and I'm with Moss-Adams,



          16        LLP.



          17        We're a regional accounting form based on the



          18   west coast.  Within that firm -- it's a traditional



          19   tax and accounting firm -- I'm part of the firm's



          20   valuation and services group.  And I was asked to



          21   perform a valuation of Evergreen.



          22        We were retained last August, August of 2016,
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           1   and performed a valuation, with an effective date of



           2   September 15th, which we provided to management in a



           3   draft form.



           4        After that time, we were asked to later update



           5   our valuation and prepare it as of the date of



           6   January 31st, 2017.



           7        Within the valuation, we considered approaches



           8   that would be applicable for Evergreen, including



           9   income approaches, market approaches, asset-based



          10   approaches.  We also considered some of the



          11   assumptions that are included in your state



          12   statutes, which considered 100 percent of the



          13   company being sold or the equity of it being sold,



          14   the earnings capacity, the market, the net asset



          15   value, whether or not a controlled premium would be



          16   applicable, and to make sure that we considered it



          17   on an ongoing concern basis, which basically assumes



          18   that it will continue into the future.  Not that it



          19   would be liquidated.



          20        Within our analysis, we looked at various



          21   measures within each of the approaches.  We



          22   collected a great deal of data from the company,
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           1   including past financial performance, future



           2   expectations.  We looked at things that are going on



           3   out in the market place, local economy demographics,



           4   things of that nature to assess how the company is



           5   doing and how it will perform going forward.



           6        Within our analysis, we prepared an income



           7   approach to look at future cash flows of the



           8   company, both on a going forward basis, but we also



           9   did consider a wind-down scenario, assuming that



          10   this conversion, if it did not happen, what would



          11   the company be like.



          12        We looked out to the marketplace for comparable



          13   transactions of other insurance companies that have



          14   been bought and sold, as well as public companies



          15   and how they trade in the marketplace.



          16        And, finally, we looked at the company's



          17   balance sheet and its assets versus its liabilities.



          18        Based on our assessment of all of those facts,



          19   characteristics, at the time of January 31st, most



          20   of our approaches were indicating that there was



          21   zero equity or surplus value.  Although there were



          22   assets on the books, the liabilities outscript those
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           1   and made it essentially either a zero or a negative



           2   number.



           3        As we have moved forward from that point, we



           4   have been asked to look at the performance of the



           5   company and consider what that performance would do



           6   in light of the valuation and where we were coming



           7   out.



           8        And since that time, it's my understanding,



           9   from the information I've been provided, one, there



          10   were some adjustments to the year-end financials,



          11   which actually made it look worse than the



          12   information we have been provided, and, two, that it



          13   continues to operate with losses and has had to take



          14   on more surplus notes to just fund its operations.



          15        So, at this point in time, unless there is



          16   there something that we weren't provided, it would



          17   be difficult for us to say that the value has



          18   increased from the values that we have provided in



          19   January.



          20             MR. REDMER:  Two questions:  This is



          21        probably pretty basic.  But could you describe



          22        what a controlled premium is?
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           1             MR. SWARTLEY:  Oh, sure.  That's a very



           2        good question.  And within our report, one of



           3        the things that we show is some of the data



           4        that might support that.



           5        So, oftentimes, when a company is looking to



           6   acquire another company, especially when you start



           7   to look at public companies, you'll see that at the



           8   point that there's an announcement, the buyers are



           9   willing to pay a price higher than the price that



          10   the shares are trading in the open market at that



          11   point in time.



          12             MR. REDMER:  Right.



          13             MR. SWARTLEY:  And I think it's important



          14        to note that we see that often, that the buyer



          15        feels that they may have some synergies or cost



          16        efficiencies or other things that make them



          17        think that we can pay a premium above what the



          18        market says, you know, what a tradeable amount



          19        would be.



          20        So, we did consider that within our analysis.



          21             MR. REDMER:  Got it.  Let's take Evergreen



          22        out of it for a second, because I think we'll
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           1        probably get into these questions when we speak



           2        to the investors.  But you do this in other



           3        industries for other companies.  So, let's take



           4        Evergreen out of it.



           5        One of the general questions is going to be if



           6   a company does not have a value, then why is another



           7   company going to be interested in purchasing that



           8   for whatever amount of money.



           9        So, could you walk through just the laundry



          10   list of some of the reasons that one company would



          11   pay money to buy another company that technically



          12   may not have any value.



          13        A    Sure.  And that's a very good question.



          14   Obviously, having not talked to the investors, I



          15   don't know their motivations.



          16             MR. REDMER:  Right.  We'll ask them.



          17             MR. SWARTLEY:  But in general -- yeah.



          18        But in general, you raise a good question,



          19        because there are motivations for companies to



          20        buy other companies, depending on situations



          21        and facts and circumstances.  Sometimes that



          22        can be that the buyer feels that they can do a
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           1        better job running the company.  So, they can



           2        come in, and I'll say fix some of the things



           3        that maybe weren't working correctly, or they



           4        may see that there's an opportunity to enhance



           5        their own business line.  So, vertical



           6        integration is a term we often use.



           7        So, taking that company, putting it with some



           8   of the services that they already provide and trying



           9   to provide a more complete package and control both



          10   revenue and costs of everything that's going on.



          11   Sometimes there are predatory reasons for doing



          12   that, taking a competitor out of the marketplace,



          13   and, also, at times, there are situations where the



          14   other company that is struggling, and someone is



          15   willing to come in, buy it and try to liquidate it



          16   and see if they can walk away with anything at the



          17   end of the day.



          18             MR. REDMER:  Right.



          19             MR. SWARTLEY:  So, those would be many of



          20        the reasons that someone may be willing to pay



          21        for a company, any type of company.



          22             MR. REDMER:  Right.  Thank you.  Van?
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           1             MR. DORSEY:  Is it an accurate summary of



           2        your testimony from your report, that in this



           3        case, because of the liabilities exceed the



           4        assets, that in your view, there are no public



           5        assets in this case?



           6             MR. SWARTLEY:  Correct.  Yes.



           7             MR. REDMER:  Great.  Thank you.



           8             MR. SWARTLEY:  Thank you.



           9             MS. TUNDERMANN:  Next, we will hear from



          10        Donna Novac.  She did the community impact



          11        analysis for Evergreen.



          12             MS. NOVAK:  Good morning.  I am Donna



          13        Novac with NovaRest Consulting.  NovaRest



          14        Consulting is an actuarial consulting firm



          15        that works with state and federal insurance



          16        underwriters.



          17        We were asked to look at the community impact



          18   of this proposed acquisition.  And our final report



          19   was published on or about April 27th, and it's



          20   available.  And, so, what I am going to be



          21   summarizing is actually the April 27th report from



          22   this year.
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           1        One of the things that we found from our



           2   analysis is that this acquisition would be



           3   beneficial to the community served by Evergreen,



           4   that it would not be detrimental to the availability



           5   or access to health services.



           6        As we've already heard, Evergreen has a very



           7   hazardous financial situation right now, and this



           8   acquisition would provide the funds to bring the



           9   risk-based capital or solvency up to an acceptable



          10   level.



          11        Evergreen, right now, offers products in the



          12   small group and large group markets.  Because of its



          13   financial condition, it's been suppressed from



          14   offering products in the individual market in 2017.



          15   But once its financial condition is satisfactory,



          16   and that suppression is raised, it intends to enter



          17   into the individual market also.



          18        There are approximately five carriers in the



          19   individual market right now.  Some of those



          20   affiliated, and approximately 11 in the small group



          21   market.  Some of those are affiliated.  And what



          22   Evergreen brings is further competition in those
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           1   markets.



           2        It's been showing over and over again that the



           3   more competitors in the health insurance market, the



           4   premiums tend to be lower.  Also, Evergreen provides



           5   additional choice in those markets as far as



           6   products.



           7        If Evergreen cannot continue, if this



           8   acquisition is not in place, its members will have



           9   to find another carrier, Evergreen being their



          10   carrier of choice.  They will have to find another



          11   carrier.  They will possibly have to pay higher



          12   premiums for similar benefits when they change



          13   carriers, and they may have to change provider



          14   networks and wouldn't have the choice of providers.



          15        The acquirers have said that at the beginning,



          16   right after the acquisition, they do not intend to



          17   change the products or the operations of Evergreen;



          18   although they are intending to look at best



          19   practices in the marketplace, and potentially make



          20   some changes going forward.



          21        Premiums will probably increase, because



          22   Evergreen, right now, is not subject to premium tax,
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           1   and they will be subject to premium tax once it's



           2   for profit.  And, also, premiums will have to cover



           3   any return on investment with the prior example.



           4        But in support of having affordable health



           5   care, being acquirers are committed to bringing the



           6   risk-based capital up to 71 percent at the time of



           7   acquisition, and they are going to make efforts to



           8   bring the risk-based capital up to 200 percent by



           9   the end of 2018.



          10        As far as equitability to the current members,



          11   ACA does not allow underwriting and does not allow



          12   pricing on morbidity.  The acquirers are not



          13   intending to change the underwriting standards in



          14   the large group market, but, again, if the



          15   acquisition does not take place, the members will



          16   have to find insurance with another carrier and



          17   potentially have a higher price and potentially have



          18   to change networks.  Are there any questions?



          19             MR. REDMER:  We're good.  Thank you very



          20        much.



          21             MS. TUNDERMANN:  One of the other required



          22        elements in a conversion application is an
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           1        analysis of the anti-trust issues.



           2        Evergreen submitted a legal opinion in that



           3   regard, and the principal counsel asked for some



           4   additional analysis, which was provided.



           5        And with that, we felt we didn't need the



           6   lawyer to appear and speak to his opinion, that the



           7   opinions speaks for itself.



           8             MR. DORSEY:  And both documents are in



           9        front of you.



          10             MS. TUNDERMANN:  Yes.  So, now, we would



          11        like to introduce you to our investors, and let



          12        you hear from them and talk with them about



          13        their plans for Evergreen.  We've arranged to



          14        have one representative of each of the



          15        investors, so that you may ask questions of



          16        each of them.  But we'll begin with the opening



          17        statement.



          18             MR. JOSHI:  Thank you.  Good morning,



          19        everyone.  My name is Maulik Joshi, and I'm the



          20        executive vice president and chief operating



          21        officer for the Anne Arundel Health System.



          22        Thank you, Mr. Commissioner, Mr. Associate
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           1        Commissioner, Mr. Dorsey.  We appreciate the



           2        opportunity.



           3        On behalf of the investors, JARS Health



           4   Investments, LLC, LifeBridge Health and Anne Arundel



           5   Health System, we appreciate the opportunity to



           6   appear before you today in support of Evergreen



           7   Health application to convert to a nonprofit to a



           8   for profit company and our application to acquire



           9   Evergreen Health.



          10        As I think, as you've heard earlier, we know



          11   Evergreen's path to this day has been long and



          12   challenging, but we want to share with you how



          13   excited we are for the commissioner and the



          14   community, in terms of the path for should these



          15   applications be approved.



          16        So, first, speaking for Anne Arundel Health



          17   System, it has been a core tenet of our strategic



          18   plan to create a provider sponsored health plan.  We



          19   developed a strategic plan in 2009 called Vision



          20   20/20, and again, the core strategic and issue is



          21   developing a provider sponsored health plan.



          22        Our investment in Evergreen is a strategic
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           1   investment.  We want to further population health



           2   and further integrate the delivery of care and the



           3   financing.



           4        Our Anne Arundel Health System mission is to



           5   enhance the health of the people we serve, and



           6   providing affordable health care coverage to



           7   Maryland citizens is essential to health.  We know



           8   that health insurance is related to better access.



           9   Better access relates to better care, and better



          10   care relates to better health.  That's the triple A,



          11   and we are aligned with Evergreen on the Triple A --



          12   best care, best service, lowest costs possible.



          13        My colleagues and I have had many conversations



          14   with the leadership of LifeBridge and with JARS, and



          15   we certainly know that we share a common vision in



          16   terms of where we're going.  While the creation of a



          17   provider sponsored health plan is not part of



          18   LifeBridge's core strategic plan, they, like us,



          19   view the acquisition of Evergreen as an exceptional



          20   opportunity to improve the health of the citizens of



          21   Maryland.



          22        I know, also, that LifeBridge Health has
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           1   developed a geographically disseminated network of



           2   providers across the health care, continuing from



           3   urgent care to nursing homes, hospice care, and



           4   bringing these providers into the Evergreen provider



           5   network will give its members more choices and



           6   easier access to services.



           7        Also, Anne Arundel Health and LifeBridge Health



           8   serve different areas of the state.  So, our



           9   interests -- and ours are complimentary, not



          10   entitlement.



          11        The motivation of JARS is a little different



          12   than as its partners.  JARS is an investment vehicle



          13   founded by a group of individuals and entities with



          14   over 100 years of experience working within the



          15   continuing care of the Maryland health care



          16   industry, including over 20 years of experience in



          17   health insurance.  JARS was created with the dual



          18   goals of a long-term financial forum of its



          19   investment, coupled with providing capital to



          20   preserve competition in the Maryland marketplace



          21   while insuring that the citizens of Maryland receive



          22   the highest quality of care.
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           1        This type of investment, we probably refer to



           2   as socially responsible investing or socially



           3   conscious investing.



           4        So, simply put, this transaction is in the



           5   public interest, because it preserves a lower cost,



           6   high quality competitor in the Maryland health



           7   insurance markets.



           8        Evergreen has a great history, going from zero



           9   to over 35,000 members in three years of operations.



          10   Evergreen was founded on the promise of providing



          11   affordable, high quality health insurance to members



          12   of our community.  However, the company needs to be



          13   financially viable.



          14        With the competence and experience and



          15   financial wear with all of JARS, LifeBridge Health,



          16   and Anne Arundel Health System, standing behind



          17   Evergreen, Evergreen will achieve financial



          18   stability and independence.  The collective



          19   knowledge, experiences and resources that the



          20   partners can bring will benefit the citizens of the



          21   state of Maryland and only improve health care



          22   delivery to the policyholders.
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           1        Should the MIA approve the conversion of



           2   Evergreen, a not for profit to a for profit health



           3   insurer, and the partners' subsequent controlling



           4   investments, the partners will control of Evergreen



           5   with cash, there will be no debt to be financed by



           6   Evergreen.



           7        To date, the partners have collectively made



           8   surplus loans of $12,000,000.



           9        Upon closing, the purchasers will provide



          10   additional investments, which are sufficient for



          11   Evergreen to satisfy the requirements for its



          12   certificate of authority, including the minimum



          13   surplus and RBC requirements of Maryland Law.



          14        The partners are fully aware for the potential



          15   need for additional capital, and as Evergreen grows



          16   in the future, and we are prepared to provide those



          17   funds, as necessary.



          18        The strong financial condition of the partners



          19   will bring financial stability to Evergreen.  This



          20   transaction will not substantially lessen



          21   competition in the Maryland insurance market or tend



          22   to create a monopoly, because none of the purchasers
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           1   own an interest in any carrier that competes with



           2   Evergreen in any market in which it participates in.



           3        Our Form A application provides some



           4   information regarding our plans for Evergreen's post



           5   closing.  We said that we have no plans to declare



           6   any extraordinary dividend, to liquidate or sell any



           7   of Evergreen's assets, or to merge Evergreen with



           8   any other entity.



           9        We said we have no plans to make any material



          10   change in the business operations or corporate



          11   structure of Evergreen.



          12        Now, let me just provide a couple of colored



          13   commentary around this.  First of all, we know that



          14   Evergreen's existing policyholders may be concerned



          15   about this transaction and what it means for them in



          16   the immediate future.



          17        We will impose no mid-term changes to the



          18   existing forms or rates of any current Evergreen



          19   policyholder.  Evergreen currently writes in a small



          20   and large group markets, and we are aware that it



          21   has filed forms and rates both for the small and



          22   individual markets for 2018.
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           1        We understand that these filings are under



           2   review at the Insurance Administration, and expect



           3   that Evergreen will keep us apprized of developments



           4   prior to closing.



           5        We know that Evergreen is advised by Milliman



           6   with regard to its rate filings, and we do not



           7   expect to change that relationship after closing.



           8        Evergreen has an extensive provider network,



           9   both directly contracted in Maryland and through a



          10   national leased network.  We expect to encourage and



          11   support Evergreen's expansion of its directly



          12   contracted Maryland network post closing, including,



          13   of course, the providers associated with as the



          14   investors.



          15        We stated in the forma that there are no



          16   employment consultation, advisory or management



          17   contracts concerning Evergreen.  We intend that



          18   Evergreen be managed by its leadership team, and its



          19   board, and have no plans to outsource management to



          20   any of them.



          21        We have spoken with Dr. Beilenson, and Dan



          22   Ragan and Dustin Plantholt, encouraging them to stay
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           1   with the company post closing.



           2        After closing, the board will further assess



           3   the strengths and weaknesses of the leadership team



           4   and group at Evergreen.



           5        The purchasers expect the new board will wish



           6   to have one or more management level employees as a



           7   result of that assessment.  We also intend to engage



           8   a consultant post closing to assist in assessing



           9   potential changes in management and improvements to



          10   operations.  There is no employee incentive or bonus



          11   plan in place at Evergreen in 2017.



          12        After closing, we expect a new board will



          13   establish an incentive or bonus plan to align with



          14   the employees' performance and with the company's



          15   goals and objectives, which is the Triple A.



          16        We appreciate the support and patience of the



          17   administration, as well as Evergreen's



          18   policyholders, brokers and employees, as we



          19   undertook detailed due diligence with the company



          20   and crafted a deal structure that best serves the



          21   company's policyholders and the company.



          22        We believe this transaction is in the public
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           1   interests and should be approved.



           2        Now, let me introduce my two colleagues, Dave



           3   and Susan.



           4             MS. STITCHER:  Good morning.  My name is



           5        Susan Stitcher.  I am a member of the JARS



           6        health care investment group.  I have over 25



           7        years of health care experience, predominantly



           8        in the Maryland market.  I was employed by



           9        consulting companies, as well as a Maryland



          10        hospital.  And I currently am a small business



          11        owner with an organization that focuses on



          12        medical record and the accuracy.



          13        I appreciate the opportunity to be part of the



          14   team.



          15             MR. KRAJEWSKI:  Good morning.  I'm very



          16        excited to be here.  My name is David



          17        Krajewski.  I have been with LifeBridge for 26



          18        years now.  Prior to that, I was with Arthur



          19        Andersen, as a health care consultant on the



          20        division side.



          21        I have 31 years of experience in health care.



          22   I served as the executive vice president at
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           1   LifeBridge and the CFO, and I'm the president of



           2   LifeBridge partners, which is the entity that we



           3   invested in in Evergreen.



           4             MR. REDMER:  So, now, thank you.  Your



           5        opening statement provided a laundry list of



           6        questions, of which none of them have anything



           7        to do with whether this is in the public



           8        interests.



           9        So, I look forward to asking you those



          10   questions at another time.  Vinnie, any questions?



          11             MR. O'GRADY:  Sure.  So, I appreciate your



          12        introductory comments on generically why you



          13        all would be interested in this acquisition,



          14        but let me just ask the investors collectively.



          15        The valuation analysis that Moss-Adams



          16   prepared, concluded that the fair market value is



          17   zero, and, you know, the financial statement show a



          18   negative surplus.



          19        So, could you just please explain, you know,



          20   why you all believe that it is a good investment for



          21   you all to invest the 12,000,000 to date, plus the



          22   substantial amounts that remain and the additional
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           1   amounts --



           2             MR. KRAJEWSKI:  There's two parts to that



           3        answer.  One is it's a strategic investment for



           4        at least two of us.  We believe this is an



           5        investment not only that has a financial return



           6        in the future, but an investment that will help



           7        us to maintain the triple A to support the



           8        waiver that Maryland has with Health Services



           9        Cost Review Commission.  So, it's a very



          10        strategic asset for us.



          11        In addition to it, we believe that an insurance



          12   company that is well run, with proper



          13   capitalization, and the right partnership -- so, we



          14   believe that we bring those partnerships to the



          15   table -- will, in the future, have value.  There's



          16   risks associated with that, certainly, and there is



          17   going to take some period of time to get it to that



          18   point where it would be producing profit and surplus



          19   and have future value.  But we believe we can get it



          20   there.



          21             MR. O'GRADY:  Do you have any further



          22        specifics about how you think you will get
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           1        there?



           2        We recognize that some of the federal charges



           3   that Dr. Beilenson mentioned, certainly contributed



           4   to develop these financial problems and the risk



           5   adjustment program still exists.



           6        And, so, just anymore detailed thoughts on how



           7   you believe you will achieve profitability?



           8             MR. KRAJEWSKI:  Certainly, the scale is



           9        one of them.  So, the partnerships we believe



          10        will allow us to build the membership and run



          11        the scale of the companies, such as the revenue



          12        based at the top is larger.  But, also, being



          13        providers, we also believe that we can reduce



          14        the revenue loss ratios, manage the medical



          15        expenses in a way that they will be around 85



          16        percent or so and get the overhead down to less



          17        than 15 percent.



          18        So, we're looking at it from that standpoint.



          19   That loss ratio, do we think we can get it to



          20   85 percent?  Probably.  Can we get the overhead down



          21   to 15 percent?  We believe we can.  In order to do



          22   that, we also have to build the scale of the

�

                                                                          36







           1   company.



           2             MR. O'GRADY:  So, you mentioned the



           3        commitments to bring the surplus to certain



           4        levels.



           5        So, let's assume for a moment that the MIA



           6   approves transactions.  And let's assume for a



           7   moment, for the sake of discussion, the company



           8   continues to incur losses.  Let's just make that



           9   assumption.



          10        Have the investors determined any point at



          11   which you would walk away from the monies invested



          12   to date as opposed to continuing to invest any



          13   additional monies?



          14             MR. JOSHI:  We have invested in Evergreen



          15        to make it successful.  So, we understand the



          16        capital requirements, and we understand that



          17        there will be further capital requirements.



          18        Again, we are not walking away easily.  We are



          19   here to make this -- and as David has said, "this is



          20   a strategic investment."  So, we're here to make it



          21   worth it.



          22             MR. DORSEY:  You've done your due
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           1        diligence.



           2             MR. JOSHI:  We've done our due diligence.



           3             MR. DORSEY:  To follow up that question,



           4        in the stock purchase agreement, there is a



           5        commitment to get the RBC levels to 200 percent



           6        RBC.



           7        I just want to hear who you acknowledged tat,



           8   if I could.  And because that's a significant factor



           9   for us in determining whether the surplus levels are



          10   going to be at a sufficient level.



          11             MR. KRAJEWSKI:  Right.  We understand



          12        that, and when we did our due diligence, that



          13        was in our prior capital planning process, that



          14        we need to get the company to 200 percent RBC.



          15        So, all three of the investors have looked at



          16   that, and at this point in time, we believe that



          17   that is something we are willing to form again.



          18             MR. DORSEY:  In the stock purchase



          19        agreement, it uses the phrase "commercially



          20        reasonable efforts to get it to that level."



          21        What does that mean to you?



          22             MS. TUNDERMANN:  In some ways, that's a
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           1        lawyer question.  So, if you ever --



           2             MR. REDMER:  Aren't they all?



           3             MS. TUNDERMANN:  I mean, feel free to



           4        answer.  But if you would like to refer to



           5        George Nemphos, I'm sure he will be glad to



           6        answer.



           7             MR. DORSEY:  In this case, I'll just ask



           8        if you agree with counsel.



           9             MR. KRAJEWSKI:  We will defer to George.



          10        Understand that the investors are going to be



          11        putting 25,000,000 to $30,000,000 on the onset.



          12        So, we're not taking that type of investment



          13        lightly.



          14        So, we would not walk away very easily.  That



          15   is a large investment, and we anticipate future



          16   investments beyond that.



          17        But I'll let George answer the lawyer part of



          18   the question.



          19             MR. NEMPHOS:  Thanks.  Good morning.  The



          20        term "commercially reasonable efforts," Van, as



          21        you know, is a legal term.



          22        Specifically, from a legal standpoint, it means
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           1   such efforts that a person or a business in the same



           2   position would reasonably take to ensure the outcome



           3   necessary to be sought.



           4        In this case, what we view that as is that as



           5   it moves forward, Evergreen is clearly its own



           6   entity, with the guidance, help and support of these



           7   three individual partners.  It's the intention, as



           8   you've heard this morning already, that it become a



           9   financially viable and capable company in delivering



          10   the product and assisting in the health care that is



          11   in the state of Maryland.



          12        To do that, there is certain regulatory



          13   requirements with regard to RBC level.  And as



          14   investors, they are willing to take the steps that



          15   another person or entity would be in in a similar



          16   situation would be in and reasonably would take, and



          17   we're to ensure that.



          18        Does that mean that these three partners, in



          19   the end, will continue to work and try to



          20   financially support and finance the needs?  Yes.



          21   But as a living, breathing entity, in and of itself,



          22   they will have to examine the situation each time
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           1   for what's the best method, the best way, and the



           2   best process in which to get to 200 percent.



           3        And as in any business, those commercially



           4   reasonable efforts could include a variety of



           5   different things, including what you all have been



           6   alluding to, which is the financial agreement with



           7   these gentlemen and Susan and her team.



           8             MR. REDMER:  Which brings a question for



           9        Susan.  A lot of the conversation has been



          10        focused on the cash that's going to be going



          11        out of the investors' checkbook into Evergreen



          12        as part of the -- I'll refer to it as for



          13        profit investments.



          14        What do you think is the realistic timeline for



          15   there being any kind of return on that investment?



          16             MS. STITCHER:  So, from JARS' perspective,



          17        we are looking at this being a long-term



          18        commitment and a long-term investment.



          19        We understand that the losses today really need



          20   to be scrutinized in understanding where we can



          21   start to make a turn.



          22        I would say in the short term, we do need to
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           1   minimize that.  That would be the goal.  But long



           2   term, I would say within 18 months to 24 months.  We



           3   would really hope that this will be something that



           4   can stand on its own, to be able support these three



           5   investors, to be able to give the existing



           6   management team to perform at a different level than



           7   before.



           8             MR. REDMER:  Thank you.  Van, do you have



           9        anymore?



          10             MR. DORSEY:  No.



          11             MR. REDMER:  We're good.  Thank you.



          12             MS. TUNDERMANN:  So, Commissioner, if I



          13        may just wrap up before I hand it back to you



          14        to see if there are any others who wish to



          15        speak.



          16        As you said at the opener, we have worked hard



          17   in the last year to draw up the transaction to bring



          18   to you for your approval that protects the company



          19   and its policyholders and the community.  We



          20   developed these comprehensive applications, both



          21   conversion and acquisition applications.  We have



          22   submitted written testimony.  We have responded to
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           1   your questions in writing, and are happy to continue



           2   to do so, as you deliberate on these applications.



           3        But we think we have built a record that meets



           4   every element of the required statutes, and we are



           5   certainly hoping that you will approve both the



           6   conversion and the acquisition as being in the best



           7   interests of the community.



           8             MR. REDMER:  Thank you.



           9             MR. DORSEY:  Thank you all for signing up



          10        with regard to the hearing.



          11        As I reviewed the hearing sheet, it does not



          12   appear that there are any others who wish to step



          13   forward and testify.



          14        If I'm inaccurate in that, if there are any



          15   folks up there, out there who wish to testify,



          16   please come forward.



          17             MR. REDMER:  Should we pull one or two out



          18        and make them say something?



          19             MR. DORSEY:  So, the transcript will be



          20        made part of the record.  We, the MI, will be



          21        reviewing the transcript, as well as the



          22        testimony that both are written and will be
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           1        heard today, as well as the other elements of



           2        the application, both confidential and what



           3        have been made to the public.



           4        So, we hope to have the answer soon.  And if



           5   you all have any questions, let us know.



           6             MR. REDMER:  Is there anybody on the phone



           7        that wishes to comment?



           8             MS. BUSKIRK:  I think we're good.



           9             MR. REDMER:  All right.  Real good.  That



          10        concludes this public hearing.  Thank you for



          11        coming.



          12        (The Evergreen Hearing was concluded at



          13   9:39 a.m.)



          14



          15



          16



          17



          18



          19



          20



          21



          22
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1 EVERGREEN HEARI NG hel d at the Offices of: 1 CONTENTS
2 2
3 MARYLAND | NSURANCE ADM NI STRATI ON 3 OPENI NG STATEMENTS: PAGE
4 200 St. Paul Place 4 By M. Redner 5
5 Suite 2700 5 By M. Beilenson 7
6 Bal ti more, Maryland 21202 6 By M. Swartley 12
7 7 By Ms. Novac 19
8 8 By M. Joshi 23
9 9 By Ms. Stitcher 32
10 10 By M. Krajewski 32
11 11 By M. Nenphos 38
12 12 EXHI Bl TS:
13 13 (None Ofered).
14 14
15 15
16 16
17 17
18 18
19 19
20 Pursuant to Notice, before Sheri D. 20

21 Hayhurst-Smith, Registered Professional Reporter and 21

22 Notary Public in and for the State of Maryland. 22
Page 3 Page 5
1 APPEARANCES 1 MR, REDMER: It's 10:00 o'clock [sic]. W
2 2 nane is Al Redner. | amthe conmi ssioner for
3 HEARI NG OFFI CER 3 the State of Maryland. I1'msorry. It's 9:00
4 AL REDMER, JR, COWM SSI ONER 4 o' clock. 1've already screwed up the record.
5 MARYLAND | NSURANCE ADM NI STRATI ON ' . . .
5 Wth ne at the table, to my right is Vinnie
6 200 St. Paul Place . . .
6 O Grady, who is the Associ ate Conmi ssioner of
7 Suite 2700
. 7 Exami nation & Auditing.
8 Bal ti nore, Maryland 21202
8 And to left is Van Dorsey, who is the
9 (410) 468-2090 v y
10 ALSO PRESENT: Vincent P. O Grady, CPA 9 principal counsel fromthe Ofice O The Attorney
11 J. Van Lear Dorsey, Principal Counsel 10 General.
12 Ren L. Tundermann, Esquire 11 The adm nistration has before it the
13 Ceorge J. Nenphos, Esquire 12 application of Evergreen Health, Inc., a nonprofit
14 Maulik S. Joshi, DrPH 13  HMOto convert to a for profit status and be
15 Calvin E. Swartley, ASA CFA 14 acquired by certain investors.
16 Donna C. Novak, President NovaRest 15 The parties wi shing to acquire Evergreen are
1 David Krajewski, LifeBridge Health 16 JARS, J-A-R'S, Health Investments, LLC, Anne Arundel
18 Susan Stitcher, JARS Health Investnents .
17 Heal th System Inc. and LBH Evergreen Hol di ngs, LLC.
19 Aaron Mdore, O ange El enent
) . 18 The application was received by the
20 Barb Van Buskirk, Vice President of
. 19 Administration on May 1st, 2017. The Administration
Mar ket i ng
21 20 published notice of the application and of this
Dr. Peter Beilenson Vice President of 21 hearing, which is required by Section 6.5-203 of the
22 Ever green 22 State Government Article of the Annotated Code of
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Page 6 Page 8

1 Maryland. 1 weren't for two arcane aspects of the ACA, being

2 ! as comissioner, may not approve the 2 outrageous payments required of us from the fatally

3 conversion and acquisition unless | determ ne that 3 flawed risk adjustment process and the federa

4 Tt isinthe public interests. 4 government not paying Evergreen what we were owed
5 In that regard, the criteria on which the 5 under the risk quota program, we would not be here

6 review is based is spelled out in the |aw 6 today.

7 We have asked Evergreen to provide testinony 7 In fact, prior to theimposition of therisk

8 today to address the criteria and to explain why 8 adjustment payment, wewere actually profiters, if

9 this proposed transaction is indeed in the public 9 you remember.
10 interest. 10  Inlate June of 2016, after we were assessed a
1 Following the testimony, on behalf of 11 $24,000,000 risk adjustment payment, over 28 percent
12 Bvergreen, others present who have signed up to 12 of our entire revenue for the year, al of which we

13 testify may do so. Time [imts may be inposed for 13 had to pay to our chief competitor in the Maryland

14 the other interested parties, if necessary. M 14 marketplace, we found ourselvesin afinancialy

15 staff and I, fromtinme to time, may pose questions. 15 untenable situation. smp|y put, without

16 For those individuals who are unable to attend 16 Significant capital to refill our completed

17 in person, we have established a conference call 17 reserves, we COU|d not conti nueto operate.

18 line. It sounds like there's a few folks on the 18 With that said, JuIy of 2016, we began pursuing

19 line. | would ask that if you're not speaking, to 19 potential investors, seeking atransaction that

20 mute your phone, but please do not place it on hold. 20 would save Evergreen and be good for our customers
21 As we get started, if you are on the phone, 21 inthe community, in part, by continuing to provide
22 would you mnd identifying who you are. 22 for amutual competitor in the marketplace.

Page 7 Page 9

1 MR. MOORE: Hi. Aaron from Orange Element | 1 After talking with more than 75 potential

2 ishere. We're representing Evergreen Health, 2 investorsfrom all over the country, we eventualy

3 as an agency for marketing. 3 selected three local investors with great

4 MS. BUSKIRK: Barb Van Buskirk, vice 4 reputationsin the state, JARS, Anne Arundel Health
5 president of marketing. 5 System and LifeBridge Health.

6 MR. REDMER: |sanybody €lse on the phone? | 6 After negotiations with both state and federal

7  Okay. With that, we will move along. 7 regulators, asyou are very cognizant of, we emerged
8 At thistime, | would like to ask Evergreen to 8 from the co-op program on January 19th, 2017. At
9 present itsfirst witness, who | believeis 9 thattime, | can't remember exactly.

10 Dr. Peter Beilenson, the president and CEO of the 10 And with our three partners, filed an

11 company. 11 application as the commissioner mentioned, to

12 Peter, welcome, and thanks for participating. 12 convert to afor profit entity on May 1st, 2017.

13 MR. BEILENSON: Thanks for having me, 13 Since that time, we have responded to written
14 Mr. Redmer, Mr. Dorsey, Mr. O'Grady. Thank you | 14 questions from the MIA and submitted written

15 for the opportunity to present this. 15 testimony for this hearing. All of thistaken

16 I'm pleased to bring this transaction to you 16 together showsthat this transaction isin the

17 and the community to demonstrate that the proposed | 17 public interest.

18 conversion and acquisition of Evergreenisin the 18 In support of this conclusion, you will hear

19 interest of its policyholders and the insurance 19 from Evergreen's valuation and community impact
20 market and citizens of this state. 20 experts. These three purchasers will speak later

21 Ironically, having been initiated as a part of 21 thismorning as well.

22 the co-op program of the Affordable Care Act, if it 22 I would like to thank the purchasers,
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1 especialy Mark Quente for working so hard to save 1 Ms. Novak?
2 Evergreen. Mark and JARS became involved last 2 MS. TUNDERMANN: No. The next witness
3 October and has stood by in the roller coaster ride 3 will be Mr. Swartley from Moss-Adams --
4 that has been this experience for the past severa 4 MR. DORSEY: Sure. Very good.
5 months, and we are very grateful to them. 5 MS. TUNDERMANN: -- our valuation expert.
6 I'd like to thank our regulatory counsel, Ren 6 MR. SWARTLEY: Where would you like me?
7 Tundermann, for her tremendous effortsin speeding 7 MS. TUNDERMANN: Here. You guyscan
8 thisprocess aong in the midst of chaos at times. 8 switch.
9 I'd like to thank our brokers, many of whom 9 Calvin will summarize his valuation analysis,
10 have worked hard to continue to sell our planseven | 10 including his updated analysis, and then he will be
11 intheface of an uncertain future. 11 glad to answer any questions.
12 But most of all, | would like to thank all of 12 MR. REDMER: If you don't mind, give your
13 Evergreen'semployees. Thishasbeen anincredibly |13 name and company for the record.
14 stressful year, not knowing whether we would survive | 14 MR. SWARTLEY: Yes. Absolutely. My name
15 and often it felt like, with the caseload, and 15 is Calvin Swartley, and I'm with Moss-Adams,
16 endlesslimbo. 16 LLP.
17 Our employees have worked very hard to keep the | 17 We're aregional accounting form based on the
18 company aive and moving forward, and | am very 18 west coast. Within that firm -- it'satraditional
19 proud of the entire team. 19 tax and accounting firm -- I'm part of the firm's
20 Finally, we are very excited about the 20 valuation and services group. And | was asked to
21 opportunities ahead for Evergreen Health. Having 21 perform avaluation of Evergreen.
22 two health systems and a cadre of experienced 22 We were retained last August, August of 2016,
Page 11 Page 13

1 insurance and health care executives on our team 1 and performed avaluation, with an effective date of
2 opens the door to many new possibilities. 2 September 15th, which we provided to management in a
3 We look forward to Evergreen emerging stronger 3 draft form.
4 than ever before. 4 After that time, we were asked to later update
5 | look forward to answering your questions and 5 our valuation and prepare it as of the date of
6 look forward to having our experts and the 6 January 31st, 2017.
7 purchasers come forward after me. 7 Within the valuation, we considered approaches
8 MR. REDMER: Any questions? 8 that would be applicable for Evergreen, including
9 MR. DORSEY: Two questions, | think. As 9 income approaches, market approaches, asset-based
10 for asyou know, it'sthe investors' intentions 10 approaches. We aso considered some of the
11 to retaining you as CEO immediately following 11 assumptions that are included in your state
12 the acquisition, correct? 12 statutes, which considered 100 percent of the
13 MR. BEILENSON: Yes. 13 company being sold or the equity of it being sold,
14 MR. DORSEY: And there are no retention 14 the earnings capacity, the market, the net asset
15 bonuses or anything of that nature? 15 value, whether or not a controlled premium would be
16 MR. BEILENSON: That is correct. 16 applicable, and to make sure that we considered it
17 MR. REDMER: Ren, did you want to say 17 on an ongoing concern basis, which basically assumes
18 anything, or are you just here to control him? 18 that it will continue into the future. Not that it
19 MS. TUNDERMANN: I'mwrangling the truth. | 19 would be liquidated.
20 I'm fine. 20 Within our analysis, we looked at various
21 MR. REDMER: Thank you, Van. 21 measures within each of the approaches. We
22 MR. DORSEY: Isthe next witness 22 collected agresat deal of datafrom the company,
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Page 14
including past financial performance, future

expectations. We looked at things that are going on
out in the market place, local economy demographics,
things of that nature to assess how the company is
doing and how it will perform going forward.

Within our analysis, we prepared an income
approach to look at future cash flows of the
company, both on a going forward basis, but we also
did consider awind-down scenario, assuming that
this conversion, if it did not happen, what would
the company be like.

We looked out to the marketplace for comparable
transactions of other insurance companies that have
been bought and sold, as well as public companies
and how they trade in the marketplace.

And, finally, we looked at the company's
balance sheet and its assets versusits liabilities.

Based on our assessment of all of those facts,
characterigtics, at the time of January 31st, most
of our approaches were indicating that there was
zero equity or surplus value. Although there were
assets on the books, the liabilities outscript those

Page 16

MR. SWARTLEY: Oh, sure. That'savery
good question. And within our report, one of
the things that we show is some of the data
that might support that.
So, oftentimes, when a company is looking to
6 acquire another company, especially when you start
7 tolook at public companies, you'll seethat at the
8 point that there's an announcement, the buyers are
9 willing to pay a price higher than the price that
10 the shares aretrading in the open market at that
11 pointintime.
12 MR. REDMER: Right.
13 MR. SWARTLEY: And | think it'simportant
14 to note that we see that often, that the buyer
15 feels that they may have some synergies or cost
16 efficiencies or other things that make them
17 think that we can pay a premium above what the
18 market says, you know, what a tradeable amount
19 would be.
20 So, we did consider that within our analysis.
21 MR. REDMER: Got it. Let'stake Evergreen
22 out of it for asecond, because | think welll
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Page 15
and made it essentialy either a zero or a negative

number.

As we have moved forward from that point, we
have been asked to look at the performance of the
company and consider what that performance would do
in light of the valuation and where we were coming
out.

And since that time, it's my understanding,
from the information I've been provided, one, there

were some adjustments to the year-end financials,
which actually made it ook worse than the
information we have been provided, and, two, that it
continues to operate with losses and has had to take
on more surplus notes to just fund its operations.
So, at this point in time, unless there is
there something that we weren't provided, it would
be difficult for usto say that the value has
increased from the values that we have provided in
January.
MR. REDMER: Two questions. Thisis
probably pretty basic. But could you describe
what a controlled premium is?

Page 17
probably get into these questions when we speak

1
2 to the investors. But you do thisin other

3 industries for other companies. So, let's take

4 Evergreen out of it.

5 One of the general questionsis going to beif

6 acompany does not have avalue, then why is another
7 company going to be interested in purchasing that

8 for whatever amount of money.

9 So, could you walk through just the laundry

10 list of some of the reasons that one company would
11 pay money to buy another company that technically
12 may not have any value.

13 A Sure. And that'savery good question.

14 Obvioudly, having not talked to the investors, |

15 don't know their motivations.

16 MR. REDMER: Right. Well ask them.

17 MR. SWARTLEY: Butin general -- yeah.
18 But in general, you raise agood question,

19 because there are motivations for companies to
20 buy other companies, depending on situations
21 and facts and circumstances. Sometimes that

22 can be that the buyer feels that they can do a

1- 800-292-4789
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Page 20

1 better job running the company. So, they can 1 One of the things that we found from our

2 comein, and I'll say fix some of the things 2 analysisisthat thisacquisition would be

3 that maybe weren't working correctly, or they 3 beneficial to the community served by Evergreen,

4 may see that there's an opportunity to enhance 4 that it would not be detrimental to the availability

5 their own businessline. So, vertical 5 or accessto health services.

6 integration is aterm we often use. 6 Aswe've already heard, Evergreen has avery

7 So, taking that company, putting it with some 7 hazardous financial situation right now, and this

8 of the servicesthat they already provide and trying 8 acquisition would provide the funds to bring the

9 to provide a more complete package and control both | 9 risk-based capital or solvency up to an acceptable

10 revenue and costs of everything that's going on. 10 levdl.

11 Sometimes there are predatory reasons for doing 11 Evergreen, right now, offers productsin the

12 that, taking a competitor out of the marketplace, 12 small group and large group markets. Because of its

13 and, also, at times, there are situations where the 13 financia condition, it's been suppressed from

14 other company that is struggling, and someoneis 14 offering productsin the individual market in 2017.

15 willing to comein, buy it and try to liquidate it 15 But onceitsfinancial condition is satisfactory,

16 and seeif they can walk away with anything at the 16 and that suppressionisraised, it intendsto enter

17 end of the day. 17 into theindividual market also.

18 MR. REDMER: Right. 18 There are approximately five carriersin the

19 MR. SWARTLEY: So, those would be many of | 19 individual market right now. Some of those

20 the reasons that someone may be willing to pay 20 daffiliated, and approximately 11 in the small group

21 for a company, any type of company. 21 market. Some of those are affiliated. And what

22 MR. REDMER: Right. Thank you. Van? 22 Evergreen bringsis further competition in those
Page 19 Page 21

1 MR. DORSEY: Isit an accurate summary of 1 markets.

2 your testimony from your report, that in this 2 It's been showing over and over again that the

3 case, because of the liabilities exceed the 3 more competitorsin the health insurance market, the

4 assets, that in your view, there are no public 4 premiumstend to be lower. Also, Evergreen provides

5 assetsin this case? 5 additiona choice in those markets as far as

6 MR. SWARTLEY: Correct. Yes. 6 products.

7 MR. REDMER: Great. Thank you. 7 If Evergreen cannot continue, if this

8 MR. SWARTLEY: Thank you. 8 acquisition isnot in place, its members will have

9 MS. TUNDERMANN: Next, wewill hear from| 9 to find another carrier, Evergreen being their

10 Donna Novac. She did the community impact 10 carrier of choice. They will have to find another

11 analysis for Evergreen. 11 carrier. They will possibly have to pay higher

12 MS. NOVAK: Good morning. | am Donna 12 premiums for similar benefits when they change

13 Novac with NovaRest Consulting. NovaRest 13 carriers, and they may have to change provider

14 Consulting is an actuarial consulting firm 14 networks and wouldn't have the choice of providers.

15 that works with state and federal insurance 15 The acquirers have said that at the beginning,

16 underwriters. 16 right after the acquisition, they do not intend to

17 We were asked to look at the community impact | 17 change the products or the operations of Evergreen;

18 of this proposed acquisition. And our fina report 18 athough they are intending to look at best

19 was published on or about April 27th, and it's 19 practicesin the marketplace, and potentially make

20 available. And, so, what | am going to be 20 some changes going forward.

21 summarizing is actually the April 27th report from 21 Premiums will probably increase, because

N
N

thisyear.

22

Evergreen, right now, is not subject to premium tax,
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1 and they will be subject to premium tax onceit's 1 Commissioner, Mr. Dorsey. We appreciate the
2 for profit. And, also, premiums will have to cover 2 opportunity.
3 any return on investment with the prior example. 3 On behalf of theinvestors, JARS Health
4 But in support of having affordable health 4 Investments, LLC, LifeBridge Health and Anne Arundel
5 care, being acquirers are committed to bringing the 5 Headth System, we appreciate the opportunity to
6 risk-based capital up to 71 percent at the time of 6 appear before you today in support of Evergreen
7 acquisition, and they are going to make efforts to 7 Health application to convert to a nonprofit to a
8 bring the risk-based capital up to 200 percent by 8 for profit company and our application to acquire
9 theend of 2018. 9 Evergreen Health.
10 Asfar as equitability to the current members, 10 As| think, asyou've heard earlier, we know
11 ACA does not alow underwriting and doesnot allow | 11 Evergreen's path to this day has been long and
12 pricing on morbidity. The acquirers are not 12 challenging, but we want to share with you how
13 intending to change the underwriting standardsin 13 excited we are for the commissioner and the
14 thelarge group market, but, again, if the 14 community, in terms of the path for should these
15 acquisition does not take place, the members will 15 applications be approved.
16 haveto find insurance with another carrier and 16 So, first, speaking for Anne Arundel Health
17 potentialy have a higher price and potentialy have 17 System, it has been a core tenet of our strategic
18 to change networks. Arethere any questions? 18 planto create a provider sponsored health plan. We
19 MR. REDMER: We're good. Thank you very 19 developed a strategic plan in 2009 called Vision
20 much. 20 20/20, and again, the core strategic and issue is
21 MS. TUNDERMANN: One of the other required | 21 developing a provider sponsored health plan.
22 elementsin a conversion application isan 22 Our investment in Evergreen is a strategic
Page 23 Page 25
1 analysis of the anti-trust issues. 1 investment. We want to further population health
2 Evergreen submitted alegal opinion in that 2 and further integrate the delivery of care and the
3 regard, and the principal counsel asked for some 3 financing.
4 additional analysis, which was provided. 4 Our Anne Arundel Health System mission isto
5 And with that, we felt we didn't need the 5 enhance the health of the people we serve, and
6 lawyer to appear and speak to his opinion, that the 6 providing affordable health care coverageto
7 opinions speaks for itself. 7 Maryland citizensis essentia to health. We know
8 MR. DORSEY: And both documents arein 8 that health insurance isrelated to better access.
9 front of you. 9 Better access relates to better care, and better
10 MS. TUNDERMANN: Yes. So, now, wewould | 10 carerelatesto better health. That'sthetriple A,
11 like to introduce you to our investors, and let 11 and we are aligned with Evergreen on the Triple A --
12 you hear from them and talk with them about 12 best care, best service, lowest costs possible.
13 their plansfor Evergreen. We've arranged to 13 My colleagues and | have had many conversations
14 have one representative of each of the 14 with the leadership of LifeBridge and with JARS, and
15 investors, so that you may ask questions of 15 we certainly know that we share acommon visionin
16 each of them. But we'll begin with the opening 16 termsof where we're going. While the creation of a
17 statement. 17 provider sponsored health plan is not part of
18 MR. JOSHI: Thank you. Good morning, 18 LifeBridge's core strategic plan, they, like us,
19 everyone. My name is Maulik Joshi, and I'm the 19 view the acquisition of Evergreen as an exceptional
20 executive vice president and chief operating 20 opportunity to improve the health of the citizens of
21 officer for the Anne Arundel Health System. 21 Maryland.
22 Thank you, Mr. Commissioner, Mr. Associate 22 I know, also, that LifeBridge Health has
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1 developed ageographically disseminated network of | 1 Should the MIA approve the conversion of
2 providers across the health care, continuing from 2 Evergreen, anot for profit to afor profit health
3 urgent care to nursing homes, hospice care, and 3 insurer, and the partners subsequent controlling
4 bringing these providersinto the Evergreen provider | 4 investments, the partners will control of Evergreen
5 network will give its members more choices and 5 with cash, there will be no debt to be financed by
6 easier accessto services. 6 Evergreen.
7 Also, Anne Arundel Health and LifeBridge Health | 7 To date, the partners have collectively made
8 servedifferent areas of the state. So, our 8 surplusloans of $12,000,000.
9 interests -- and ours are complimentary, not 9 Upon closing, the purchasers will provide
10 entitlement. 10 additional investments, which are sufficient for
11 The motivation of JARS is alittle different 11 Evergreen to satisfy the requirements for its
12 thanasitspartners. JARSisaninvestment vehicle |12 certificate of authority, including the minimum
13 founded by agroup of individuals and entitieswith | 13 surplus and RBC requirements of Maryland Law.
14 over 100 years of experience working within the 14 The partners are fully aware for the potential
15 continuing care of the Maryland health care 15 need for additional capital, and as Evergreen grows
16 industry, including over 20 years of experiencein 16 inthefuture, and we are prepared to provide those
17 hedlth insurance. JARS was created with the dual 17 funds, as necessary.
18 goalsof along-term financial forum of its 18 The strong financial condition of the partners
19 investment, coupled with providing capital to 19 will bring financia stability to Evergreen. This
20 preserve competition in the Maryland marketplace | 20 transaction will not substantially lessen
21 whileinsuring that the citizens of Maryland receive |21 competition in the Maryland insurance market or tend
22 thehighest quality of care. 22 to create a monopoly, because none of the purchasers
Page 27 Page 29
1 Thistype of investment, we probably refer to 1 ownaninterest in any carrier that competes with
2 associally responsible investing or socially 2 Evergreen in any market in which it participatesin.
3 conscious investing. 3 Our Form A application provides some
4 So, simply put, this transaction isin the 4 information regarding our plans for Evergreen's post
5 public interest, because it preserves alower cost, 5 closing. We said that we have no plans to declare
6 high quality competitor in the Maryland health 6 any extraordinary dividend, to liquidate or sell any
7 insurance markets. 7 of Evergreen's assets, or to merge Evergreen with
8 Evergreen has agreat history, going from zero 8 any other entity.
9 to over 35,000 membersin three years of operations. 9 We said we have no plans to make any material
10 Evergreen was founded on the promise of providing | 10 change in the business operations or corporate
11 affordable, high quality health insuranceto members | 11 structure of Evergreen.
12 of our community. However, the company needsto be | 12 Now, let me just provide a couple of colored
13 financially viable. 13 commentary around this. First of al, we know that
14 With the competence and experience and 14 Evergreen's existing policyholders may be concerned
15 financial wear with al of JARS, LifeBridge Health, 15 about this transaction and what it means for them in
16 and Anne Arundel Health System, standing behind 16 theimmediate future.
17 Evergreen, Evergreen will achieve financia 17 We will impose no mid-term changesto the
18 stability and independence. The collective 18 existing forms or rates of any current Evergreen
19 knowledge, experiences and resources that the 19 policyholder. Evergreen currently writesin asmall
20 partners can bring will benefit the citizens of the 20 and large group markets, and we are aware that it
21 state of Maryland and only improve health care 21 hasfiled forms and rates both for the small and

N
N

delivery to the policyholders.

N
N

individual markets for 2018.
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1 We understand that these filings are under 1 interests and should be approved.
2 review at the Insurance Administration, and expect 2 Now, let me introduce my two colleagues, Dave
3 that Evergreen will keep us apprized of developments | 3 and Susan.
4 prior to closing. 4 MS. STITCHER: Good morning. My nameis
5 We know that Evergreen is advised by Milliman 5 Susan Stitcher. | am a member of the JARS
6 with regard to itsrate filings, and we do not 6 health care investment group. | have over 25
7 expect to change that relationship after closing. 7 years of health care experience, predominantly
8 Evergreen has an extensive provider network, 8 in the Maryland market. | was employed by
9 both directly contracted in Maryland and through a 9 consulting companies, aswell asaMaryland
10 national leased network. We expect to encourage and | 10 hospital. And | currently am a small business
11 support Evergreen's expansion of its directly 11 owner with an organization that focuses on
12 contracted Maryland network post closing, including, | 12 medical record and the accuracy.
13 of course, the providers associated with as the 13 | appreciate the opportunity to be part of the
14 investors. 14 team.
15 We stated in the formathat there are no 15 MR. KRAJEWSKI: Good morning. I'm very
16 employment consultation, advisory or management | 16 excited to be here. My nameis David
17 contracts concerning Evergreen. Weintend that 17 Krajewski. | have been with LifeBridge for 26
18 Evergreen be managed by itsleadership team, and its | 18 years now. Prior to that, | was with Arthur
19 board, and have no plans to outsource management to | 19 Andersen, as a health care consultant on the
20 any of them. 20 division side.
21 We have spoken with Dr. Beilenson, and Dan 21 | have 31 years of experience in health care.
22 Ragan and Dustin Plantholt, encouraging them to stay | 22 | served as the executive vice president at
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with the company post closing.

After closing, the board will further assess
the strengths and weaknesses of the leadership team
and group at Evergreen.
The purchasers expect the new board will wish
to have one or more management level employeesas a
result of that assessment. We also intend to engage
a consultant post closing to assist in assessing
potential changesin management and improvements to
operations. Thereis no employee incentive or bonus
plan in place at Evergreen in 2017.
After closing, we expect a new board will
establish an incentive or bonus plan to align with
the employees performance and with the company's
goals and objectives, which isthe Triple A.
We appreciate the support and patience of the
administration, as well as Evergreen's
policyholders, brokers and employees, aswe
undertook detailed due diligence with the company
and crafted a deal structure that best serves the
company's policyholders and the company.
We believe thistransaction isin the public
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LifeBridge and the CFO, and I'm the president of
LifeBridge partners, which is the entity that we
invested in in Evergreen.

MR. REDMER: So, now, thank you. Y our
opening statement provided alaundry list of
questions, of which none of them have anything
to do with whether thisisin the public
interests.

So, | look forward to asking you those
guestions at another time. Vinnie, any questions?
MR. O'GRADY: Sure. So, | appreciate your
introductory comments on generically why you
al would be interested in this acquisition,

but let me just ask the investors collectively.

The vauation analysis that Moss-Adams
prepared, concluded that the fair market valueis
zero, and, you know, the financial statement show a
negative surplus.

So, could you just please explain, you know,
why you al believe that it isagood investment for
you all to invest the 12,000,000 to date, plusthe
substantial amounts that remain and the additional
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1 amounts-- 1 company.
2 MR. KRAJEWSKI: There'stwo partstothat | 2 MR. OGRADY': So, you mentioned the
3 answer. Oneisit'sastrategic investment for 3 commitments to bring the surplus to certain
4 at least two of us. We believethisisan 4 levels.
5 investment not only that has afinancia return 5 S0, let's assume for amoment that the MIA
6 in the future, but an investment that will help 6 approvestransactions. And let's assumefor a
7 usto maintain the triple A to support the 7 moment, for the sake of discussion, the company
8 waiver that Maryland has with Health Services 8 continuesto incur losses. Let's just make that
9 Cost Review Commission. So, it'savery 9 assumption.
10 strategic asset for us. 10 Have the investors determined any point at
11 In addition to it, we believe that an insurance 11 which you would walk away from the monies invested
12 company that iswell run, with proper 12 to date as opposed to continuing to invest any
13 capitalization, and the right partnership -- so, we 13 additional monies?
14 believe that we bring those partnerships to the 14 MR. JOSHI: We haveinvested in Evergreen
15 table-- will, inthe future, have value. There's 15 to make it successful. So, we understand the
16 risks associated with that, certainly, and thereis 16 capital requirements, and we understand that
17 going to take some period of timeto get it to that 17 there will be further capital requirements.
18 point where it would be producing profit and surplus| 18 Again, we are not walking away easily. Weare
19 and have future value. But we believewe can get it | 19 hereto make this-- and as David has said, "thisis
20 there. 20 astrategic investment.” So, we're here to make it
21 MR. OGRADY: Do you have any further 21 worthit.
22 specifics about how you think you will get 22 MR. DORSEY: Y ou've done your due
Page 35 Page 37

1 there? 1 diligence
2 We recognize that some of the federal charges 2 MR. JOSHI: We've done our due diligence.
3 that Dr. Beilenson mentioned, certainly contributed 3 MR. DORSEY: To follow up that question,
4 to develop these financial problems and the risk 4 in the stock purchase agreement, thereisa
5 adjustment program still exists. 5 commitment to get the RBC levels to 200 percent
6 And, so, just anymore detailed thoughts on how 6 RBC.
7 you believe you will achieve profitability? 7 | just want to hear who you acknowledged tat,
8 MR. KRAJEWSKI: Certainly, the scaleis 8 if I could. And because that's a significant factor
9 one of them. So, the partnerships we believe 9 for usin determining whether the surplus levels are
10 will alow usto build the membership and run 10 going to be at asufficient level.
11 the scale of the companies, such as the revenue 11 MR. KRAJEWSKI: Right. We understand
12 based at the top islarger. But, also, being 12 that, and when we did our due diligence, that
13 providers, we also believe that we can reduce 13 wasin our prior capital planning process, that
14 the revenue | oss ratios, manage the medical 14 we need to get the company to 200 percent RBC.
15 expenses in away that they will be around 85 15 So, al three of the investors have looked at
16 percent or so and get the overhead down to less 16 that, and at this point in time, we believe that
17 than 15 percent. 17 that is something we are willing to form again.
18 So, we're looking at it from that standpoint. 18 MR. DORSEY: In the stock purchase
19 That lossratio, do we think we can get it to 19 agreement, it uses the phrase "commercially
20 85 percent? Probably. Can we get the overhead down | 20 reasonable effortsto get it to that level."
21 to 15 percent? We believe we can. In order to do 21 What does that mean to you?
22 that, we also have to build the scale of the 22 MS. TUNDERMANN: In some ways, that'sa
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1 lawyer question. So, if you ever -- 1 for what's the best method, the best way, and the
2 MR. REDMER: Aren't they all? 2 best processin which to get to 200 percent.
3 MS. TUNDERMANN: | mean, feel freeto 3 And asin any business, those commercially
4 answer. But if you would like to refer to 4 reasonable efforts could include a variety of
5 George Nemphos, I'm sure he will be glad to 5 different things, including what you all have been
6 answer. 6 alluding to, which isthe financial agreement with
7 MR. DORSEY: Inthiscase, I'll just ask 7 these gentlemen and Susan and her team.
8 if you agree with counsel. 8 MR. REDMER: Which brings a question for
9 MR. KRAJEWSKI: Wewill defer to George. 9 Susan. A lot of the conversation has been
10 Understand that the investors are going to be 10 focused on the cash that's going to be going
11 putting 25,000,000 to $30,000,000 on the onset. 11 out of the investors' checkbook into Evergreen
12 So, we're not taking that type of investment 12 as part of the -- I'll refer to it asfor
13 lightly. 13 profit investments.
14 So, we would not walk away very easily. That 14 What do you think isthe realistic timeline for
15 isalargeinvestment, and we anticipate future 15 there being any kind of return on that investment?
16 investments beyond that. 16 MS. STITCHER: So, from JARS' perspective,
17 But I'll let George answer the lawyer part of 17 we are looking at this being along-term
18 the question. 18 commitment and along-term investment.
19 MR. NEMPHOS: Thanks. Good morning. The| 19 We understand that the losses today really need
20 term "commercially reasonable efforts," Van, as 20 to be scrutinized in understanding where we can
21 you know, isalegal term. 21 start to make aturn.
22 Specifically, from alegal standpoint, it means 22 | would say in the short term, we do need to
Page 39 Page 41
1 such effortsthat a person or abusinessin the same 1 minimizethat. That would bethe goal. But long
2 position would reasonably take to ensure the outcome | 2 term, | would say within 18 months to 24 months. We
3 necessary to be sought. 3 would really hope that this will be something that
4 In this case, what we view that asisthat as 4 can stand on its own, to be able support these three
5 it movesforward, Evergreenisclearly its own 5 investors, to be able to give the existing
6 entity, with the guidance, help and support of these 6 management team to perform at adifferent level than
7 threeindividua partners. It'stheintention, as 7 before.
8 you've heard this morning already, that it become a 8 MR. REDMER: Thank you. Van, do you have
9 financialy viable and capable company in delivering | 9 anymore?
10 the product and assisting in the health carethat is 10 MR. DORSEY: No.
11 inthe state of Maryland. 11 MR. REDMER: Weregood. Thank you.
12 To do that, there is certain regulatory 12 MS. TUNDERMANN: So, Commissioner, if |
13 requirementswith regard to RBC level. And as 13 may just wrap up before | hand it back to you
14 investors, they are willing to take the steps that 14 to seeif there are any others who wish to
15 another person or entity would beininasimilar 15 speak.
16 situation would be in and reasonably would take, and | 16 Asyou said at the opener, we have worked hard
17 we'reto ensure that. 17 inthelast year to draw up the transaction to bring
18 Does that mean that these three partners, in 18 toyou for your approval that protects the company
19 theend, will continue to work and try to 19 and its policyholders and the community. We
20 financially support and finance the needs? Yes. 20 developed these comprehensive applications, both
21 Butasaliving, breathing entity, in and of itself, 21 conversion and acquisition applications. We have
22 they will have to examine the situation each time 22 submitted written testimony. We have responded to
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1 your questionsin writing, and are happy to continue 1 CERTIFICATE OF SHORTHAND REPCRTER - NOTARY PUBLIC
2 todo so, asyou ddiberate on these applications. 2 I, Sheri D. Smith, Registered Professional
3 But we think we have built arecord that meets 3 Reporter, the officer before whomthe foregoing
4 every dement of the requi red statutes, and we are 4  deposition was taken, do hereby certify that the
5 certai n|y hopi ng that you will approve both the 5 foregoing transcript is a true and correct record
6 conversion and the acquisition as bei ng in the best 6 the testinony given; that said testinony was taken
7 interests of the community. 7 by me stenographically and thereafter reduced to
8 MR. REDMER: Thank you. 8 typewiting under ny direction and that | am neither
9 MR. DORSEY: Thank you al for signing up 9 counsel for, related to, nor enployed by any of the
10 with regard to the hearing_ 10 parties to this case and have no interest, financial
11  Asl reviewed the hearing shest, it does not 11 or otherwise, inits outcome.
12 appear that there are any others who wish to step 12 IN WTNESS WHEREOF, | have hereunto set ny
13 forward and testify. 13 hand and affixed ny notarial seal this 15th day of
14 If I'm inaccurate in that, if there are any 14 June, 2017.
15 folks up there, out there who wish to testify, 15 MW commission expires November 4, 2020.
16 please come forward. 16
17 MR. REDMER: Should we pull one or two out | *’
18 and make them say g)methlng’) 18 REG STERED PROFESSI ONAL REPORTER
19 MR. DORSEY: So, the transcript will be 19 NOTARY PUBLIC FCR THE STATE OF MARYLAND
20  made part of the record. We, the M1, will be 20
21 reviewing the transcript, as well asthe 21
22 testimony that both are written and will be 22
Page 43
1 heard today, as well as the other elements of
2 the application, both confidential and what
3 have been made to the public
4 So, we hope to have the answer soon. And if
5 you al have any questions, let us know.
6 MR. REDMER: Isthere anybody on the phone
7 that wishesto comment?
8 MS. BUSKIRK: | think we're good.
9 MR. REDMER: All right. Real good. That
10 concludes this public hearing. Thank you for
11 coming.
12 (The Evergreen Hearing was concluded at
13 9:39am.)
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
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